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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Today we are

          3  holding a hearing on a number of gun control bills

          4  and resolutions. We've had hearings on this topic in

          5  the past. In November we held a hearing on a bill

          6  that would require establishments where weapons

          7  violations have taken place to adopt security

          8  measures. We have also had resolutions adopted by

          9  this Committee and the full Council calling on the

         10  Congress to reauthorize the assault weapons ban,

         11  with strengthening amendments and also called on

         12  Congress to reject legislation to grant the gun

         13  industry special protection against legal action.

         14                 In September we held a hearing in

         15  2003 on a number of bills and resolutions, some

         16  before us today. In October 2002, we adopted a bill

         17  signed by the Mayor that limits the issuance for

         18  permits for the possession of rifles to, among

         19  others, those convicted of domestic violence, and we

         20  also passed a resolution calling on Congress to

         21  close the background check loophole by extending the

         22  Brady law.

         23                 So, we have a long and I believe

         24  distinguished record here in this Committee and this

         25  Council of dealing with gun issues.
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          2                 As you know, New York City has one of

          3  the strictest gun control laws in the nation. Most

          4  of the guns used in crimes come from out of state.

          5  That's why we've heard and adopted numerous

          6  resolutions calling on the federal government to

          7  strengthen prohibitions on the federal level.

          8                 Today we have six bills, four

          9  resolutions. I am going to just briefly mention

         10  three that I have sponsored, then allow whatever

         11  sponsors are here to discuss theirs, or they can

         12  discuss them when they do arrive.

         13                 We have with us right now, we have

         14  Melinda Katz, Helen Foster, and David Yassky. I know

         15  David is working really hard on some of these bills,

         16  actually is working closely with Senator

         17  Schneiderman, who I believe is here also, and will

         18  be testifying, if time permits on some of these

         19  matters.

         20                 My first introduction is 490-A, which

         21  limits the purchase of a rifle or a shotgun to one

         22  every 90 days.

         23                 Although rifles obviously serve

         24  legitimate hunting purposes, there may be a

         25  situation where a person with a license purchases
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          2  numerous shotguns from someone who does not have a

          3  license. And this bill will prevent those so-called

          4  store purchases and assist to crack down on illegal

          5  weapons.

          6                 Resolution 78 will also assist in the

          7  crackdown of illegal weapons and making it easier

          8  for prosecutors to go after illegal gun dealers.

          9  Under current law, a person may be prosecuted for

         10  criminal sale of a fire arm in the second degree, a

         11  C felony, if they sell ten or more firearms. And

         12  they're prosecuted for the B felony, if they sell 20

         13  or more.

         14                 Dealers know this and sometimes they

         15  sell just less than those amounts to avoid the

         16  higher penalty. So, we're asking the State to lower

         17  those amounts from 20 to 10 and from 10 to 3. That

         18  will make it easier to prosecute and put these

         19  illegal dealers in jail for a longer period of time.

         20                 Resolution 85 I've also sponsored,

         21  called on Congress to establish a national

         22  ballistics fingerprint database, which they have

         23  here in New York, by the way.

         24                 Such a database would require

         25  ballistics testing on all new firearms and
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          2  cataloguing these ballistics images in a national

          3  computerized database. This would coordinate local

          4  law enforcement agencies, and help provide evidence

          5  to link felons to gun crimes in a timely and

          6  efficient manner.

          7                 We have it here in New York. I'm

          8  interested to find out from the police how well

          9  that's working. Before we move on, I'm going to ask

         10  Council Member Yassky to make a brief opening

         11  statement on the measures he's introduced.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you so

         13  much, Chair Vallone. First, I just want to thank

         14  you. You just touched on a fraction of the work that

         15  you and this Committee have done to promote gun

         16  safety. I want to thank you for all of it, and

         17  certainly for holding this hearing today.

         18                 I look forward to hearing the

         19  testimony from the Administration, so I'll be very

         20  brief. I just want to draw my colleagues' attention

         21  to, in particular to Intro. 365, which in addition

         22  to the bills that Chair Vallone spoke about, I feel

         23  is one of the important items on the agenda today.

         24                 Intro. 365 very simply is aimed at

         25  stemming the flood of illegal guns that continue to

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  plague us here in New York City.

          3                 We know for a fact that virtually all

          4  the guns used in crime in New York City come from

          5  out of state. Tracing data shows every year it's 90

          6  percent, 89 percent, some years as high as 95

          7  percent of the crime guns in New York City that are

          8  recovered by the NYPD and traced were bought out of

          9  state, typically in a handful of easy access states,

         10  the Carolinas, Georgia, Ohio, Florida.

         11                 Now, the NAACP, I'm sure you will

         12  recall, brought a lawsuit a few years ago here in

         13  New York City, federal court, alleging that the gun

         14  industry knows exactly what it needs to do to cut

         15  down on the flood of guns.

         16                 And that lawsuit resulted in a

         17  100-page opinion of a federal judge saying the NAACP

         18  proved its case point-by-point, that if the gun

         19  industry eliminated multiple sales, did address

         20  verifications, sold only in storefronts, did

         21  everything that a responsible industry would do,

         22  that it would reduce the number of illegal guns

         23  coming to New York City, and reduce the number of

         24  firearm crimes in New York City as a result.

         25                 Then the judge, though, said
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          2  unfortunately the state of the law is that the

          3  courts can't force the gun industry to do that, only

          4  legislatures can.

          5                 That's what Intro. 365 does. It

          6  follows up on the NAACP lawsuit by imposing a code

          7  of responsible conduct on the gun industry. My

          8  colleagues, I hope that you will enthusiastically

          9  support it, and we will be able to pass it very

         10  shortly. Chair Vallone, thank you, again, for all of

         11  your support and help.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         13  Councilman Yassky. We've also been joined by Council

         14  Member Dilan. Thank you for coming down.

         15                 There are a number of other bills

         16  that just will ask the Police Department to comment

         17  on and possibly if their sponsors arrive, will let

         18  them comment. I think it's important for me to note,

         19  as I always do, that I am a firm believer in the

         20  right to own a gun.

         21                 However, in order to keep it possible

         22  to legally own a weapon. We need to increase the

         23  penalties for illegal guns, to go after the

         24  responsible distributors and also strengthen the

         25  detection methods and give the police real tools to
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          2  get these guns off the street, and that's why we're

          3  here today.

          4                 We are joined by John Feinblatt, our

          5  Criminal Justice Coordinator, along with Thomas

          6  Prasso, our Director of the NYPD's License Division,

          7  with a few others I see there who may have to

          8  introduce themselves. So, thank you, Commissioner,

          9  for joining us, and we look forward to your

         10  testimony.

         11                 MR. FEINBLATT: Good morning, and

         12  thank you very much, Chairman Vallone, and members

         13  of Public Safety Committee, and other members of the

         14  Council. My name is John Feinblatt, I'm the Criminal

         15  Justice Coordinator of the City of New York, and I

         16  have been asked to appear today before the Council

         17  to give testimony regarding Introduction 365, a bill

         18  that would make certain gun dealers and

         19  manufacturers liable for the negligent distribution

         20  of firearms.

         21                 I can say without exaggeration that

         22  there is no more important public safety issue for

         23  the City and for this Administration than gun

         24  violence, and I thank you for the opportunity to be

         25  heard on this very critical subject.
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          2                 Let me begin by making one thing

          3  crystal clear, the Bloomberg Administration is 100

          4  percent committed to doing whatever it takes to end

          5  gun violence in our City.

          6                 Nothing poses a greater threat to the

          7  safety of all New Yorkers and the fabric of their

          8  communities. Even against a backdrop of historic

          9  reductions in crime, every victim of gun violence is

         10  one victim too many. That is why we have made the

         11  eradication of gun violence a top priority since day

         12  one. And this is not just talk. Anti-gun strategy

         13  has taken shape in the form of bold and aggressive

         14  initiatives on multiple fronts.

         15                 One of the most visible examples is

         16  Operation Impact, a data-drive street level

         17  enforcement initiative launched in January 2003. By

         18  flooding a small number of impact zones where crime

         19  is most concentrated with hundreds of police

         20  officers the Police Department has achieved dramatic

         21  reductions in virtually every crime category, but

         22  the results are particularly impressive when it

         23  comes to guns and to gun violence.

         24                 This year murder in newly-selected

         25  impact zones fell 56 percent, compared to the same
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          2  period last year, and shootings dropped 56 percent

          3  compared to the same period last year. These types

          4  of results speak for themselves.

          5                 In addition to our street level

          6  enforcement, we are also making great strides toward

          7  improving court dispositions for people charged with

          8  felony gun possession.

          9                 The Brooklyn Gun Court launched in

         10  April of last year is a specialized court part

         11  dedicated exclusively to adjudicating felony gun

         12  possession cases from arraignment through sentence.

         13                 The results have been remarkable. To

         14  date 88 percent of gun case court cases have

         15  resulted in incarceration, 23 percent improvement

         16  over the prior going rate in Brooklyn.

         17                 Moreover, 87 percent of jail

         18  sentences are one year or longer, a staggering

         19  increase of 93 percent. The success of the Brooklyn

         20  gun court has lead to the opening of two more gun

         21  courts in the Bronx and Queens, both of which show

         22  promising early results.

         23                 In the Bronx the incarceration rate

         24  has increased 53 percent and the percentage of jail

         25  sentences that equal or exceed one year is up 43
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          2  percent. In Queens the incarceration rate has

          3  climbed 55 percent. By all accounts our gun courts

          4  have made a dramatic difference in ensuring swift

          5  and certain justice for criminals who carry guns.

          6                 We are also targeting the gun

          7  violence that plagues New York City public housing

          8  with a new public safety initiative called Operation

          9  Safe Housing.

         10                 Although major crime in New York City

         11  public housing has plummeted over the last decade,

         12  crime statistics show that public housing still

         13  suffers from more than its share of gun violence.

         14                 Last year, 16 percent of the City's

         15  shootings and 11 percent of its murders were

         16  committed on NYCHA property. Operation safe housing

         17  literally attacks gun offenders where they live. A

         18  new expedited eviction track will get residents who

         19  commit gun crimes on NYCHA property out of public

         20  housing and away from their law abiding neighbors,

         21  faster than every before. And a new partnership with

         22  State Parole will prevent convicted gun felons from

         23  moving in in the first place.

         24                 In the coming months, we will also be

         25  targeting offenders who get arrested repeatedly for
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          2  gun crimes, but are somehow convicted of lesser

          3  offenses. We are currently developing a new

          4  initiative to ensure that criminals who habitually

          5  carry guns no longer slip through the cracks of the

          6  criminal justice system.

          7                 In addition to using the criminal law

          8  to reduce gun violence, the City is also taking

          9  civil action against gun manufacturers. As the

         10  Council is aware, the City has brought a lawsuit

         11  against more than 30 firearms manufacturers, seeking

         12  money damages, as well as injunctive relief.

         13                 Our goal is to force gun

         14  manufacturers to adopt responsible practices

         15  designed to minimize the risk that their weapons

         16  will end up in the illegal firearms market.

         17                 The lawsuit is expected to go to

         18  trial in April of next year. That brings me to

         19  introduction 365. Let me begin by commending the

         20  sponsor for his commitment to gun control, and by

         21  making it clear that this Administration shares the

         22  goal of this legislation.

         23                 We also believe that forcing gun

         24  manufacturers and dealers to behave responsibly,

         25  will go a long way to protecting the City from gun
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          2  violence.

          3                 Like Introduction 365, the City's

          4  lawsuit seeks to create a mandatory code of conduct

          5  for gun manufacturers that would stop firearms from

          6  falling into the wrong hands. Because of this

          7  obvious substantial overlap, commenting on this bill

          8  specifically would be tantamount, however, to

          9  commenting on the subject matter of the lawsuit.

         10                 In order to avoid providing free

         11  discovery to our adversaries in the gun industry, a

         12  concern I am sure that the Council shares, I've been

         13  advised to refrain from commenting publicly on this

         14  bill.

         15                 Accordingly, I respectively decline

         16  to comment on specifics of those legislation. In the

         17  meantime, however, we will continue to work together

         18  with all of our criminal justice partners, develop

         19  bold, to develop aggressive, and to develop creative

         20  approaches to this critical public safety issue.

         21                 Until there is no more gun violence,

         22  we owe the people of this City nothing less.

         23                 I will be happy to take any

         24  questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Commissioner,
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          2  can we hear the other testimony prior to

          3  questioning, or do you have time constraints?

          4                 MR. FEINBLATT: I have time concerns

          5  today, so if there are any questions about this, I

          6  would appreciate it if we could take care of them

          7  now.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me yield to

          9  Council Member Yassky then.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I just want to

         11  see if I can get any better understanding of the

         12  Administration's position on Intro. 365. You say

         13  that there is obvious and substantial overlap

         14  between the bill and your City's lawsuit. I take it

         15  that you're saying the goals of the lawsuit are the

         16  same as those of the bill. Is that what you're

         17  saying?

         18                 MR. FEINBLATT: Yes, I think I've

         19  clearly stated that our interests are similar.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I intend to

         21  continue to urge my colleagues to bring this bill

         22  forward for a vote. I'm hopeful it will be voted on

         23  in the near future by the Council. Should we expect

         24  the Mayor to sign it or veto it?

         25                 MR. FEINBLATT: Well, I think it would
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          2  be premature to tell you that. But I think it's

          3  obviously clear that our goals are very consistent

          4  with your goals, and that we would be happy to

          5  probably discuss the legislation in another forum;

          6  however, it would not be to anybody's advantage at

          7  this point to have a public discussion on the

          8  specifics of the bill, because I think that would

          9  risk just providing discovery to our adversaries.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. I have

         11  some questions about some specific facts of gun

         12  trafficking in New York City, and should I defer

         13  those to the Police Department representatives?

         14                 MR. FEINBLATT: I think that would be

         15  appropriate.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

         17                 Chair, thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I have one

         19  question I believe that I would like your opinion

         20  on, which is not on that bill. The State ballistics

         21  database, in your position, have you had an

         22  opportunity to work with that in any regard? And do

         23  you have an opinion on whether that's been

         24  successful?

         25                 MR. FEINBLATT: I think that that

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  would be best answered by the Police Department.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I will be asking

          4  them. I was just wondering if you wanted to talk

          5  about that.

          6                 Do any other Council Members have

          7  questions for the Commissioner before he goes?

          8                 Okay, Commissioner, thank you for

          9  your time.

         10                 MR. FEINBLATT: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We will grill

         12  the people you leave behind.

         13                 I believe that Mr. Prasso has some

         14  testimony?

         15                 MR. PRASSO: Good morning, Mr.

         16  Chairman, and members of the Council. I'm Thomas

         17  Prasso, I'm the Director of the License Division of

         18  New York City Police Department, and I'm joined this

         19  morning by Inspector Steven Silks, the Commanding

         20  Officer of the Firearms and Tactics Section, Deputy

         21  Inspector Brian O'Neill, the Commanding Officer of

         22  the Organized Crime Investigation Division, Deputy

         23  Inspector Roy Richter, the Commanding Officer of the

         24  License Division, and Deputy Inspector Gary Gomula,

         25  Commanding Officer of the Crime Scene Unit, and we
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          2  are pleased to be here today on behalf of Police

          3  Commissioner Raymond W. Kelly, to discuss several

          4  bills before you today, affecting the possession of

          5  firearms, rifles and shotguns and the investigation

          6  of gun trafficking.

          7                 For three of the bills, we support

          8  enactment of the bills but note some concerns that

          9  you may wish to consider. For two of the bills, we

         10  do not support enactment, as we will explain.

         11                 First, Intros Number 144-A, 469-A and

         12  490-A all represent improvements in the manner in

         13  which the lawful possession of deadly weapons is

         14  regulated in New York City, and we encourage the

         15  Committee to approve them with some suggested

         16  changes.

         17                 Intro. 144-A would conform the

         18  Administrative Code of the City Charter, in raising

         19  the minimum age to obtain a rifle/shotgun permit to

         20  21. However, it is suggested that the Council might

         21  at some point wish to consider reconciling minor

         22  technical differences between the Administrative

         23  Code and the Charter, such as the exemptions

         24  relating to minors contained in Charter Section 465,

         25  which differs slightly from the exemptions contained
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          2  in the Administrative Code Section 10-305.

          3                 The bill would also require dealers

          4  who sell ammunition to make a record of identifying

          5  information for rifles or shotguns for which the

          6  ammunition is purchased. The Police Department

          7  supports this concept in requiring a higher level of

          8  information to be recorded by dealers selling

          9  ammunition to rifle and shotgun permittees, and

         10  requiring the information to be made available to

         11  state and local law enforcement agencies.

         12                 Intro. 469-A raises the civil penalty

         13  for violating the City's ban on possessing assault

         14  weapons, allows the Police Commissioner to require

         15  the surrender of all firearms by anyone convicted of

         16  violating the ban, and prohibits the issuance of a

         17  rifle or shotgun permit to anyone who has been

         18  convicted.

         19                 We note that the substance of some of

         20  the elements of the bill is already in effect since

         21  the License Division will take actions to suspend a

         22  handgun license or rifle/shotgun permit of anyone

         23  arrested for violating the assault weapons ban,

         24  among other crimes, and remove the weapons from the

         25  custody of the licensee.
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          2                 The bill also requires the Police

          3  Commissioner to review the list of banned assault

          4  weapons three times per year and update it as

          5  necessary.

          6                 The Department has heretofore used a

          7  list of banned assault weapons developed by the

          8  Federal Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and

          9  Explosives, the BATFE.

         10                 In light of the expiration of the

         11  Federal Assault Weapons ban, the License Division is

         12  in the process of amending its rules to include a

         13  specific list of banned models, and we support the

         14  periodic review of the list as outlined in the bill.

         15                 Intro. 490-A, would prohibit a gun

         16  dealer from selling more than one rifle or shotgun

         17  per transaction, and from selling a rifle or shotgun

         18  to a person if the dealer knows or should know that

         19  the person has purchased the weapon within the last

         20  90 days.

         21                 We agree with the intent of the bill,

         22  however, you may wish to consider two issues

         23  relevant to enacting the bill. First, we note that

         24  most crimes committed by the use of guns do not

         25  involve people who have rifle shotgun permits.
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          2                 Second, with respect to budget

          3  implications, should the bill be enacted, it's

          4  estimated that the License Division would be

          5  required to hire up to four additional police

          6  administrative aids, at a cost of over $150,000 per

          7  year to respond to inquiries by dealers seeking

          8  information regarding whether and when prospective

          9  purchases last acquired a handgun, rifle or shotgun.

         10                 We would now like to address Intros

         11  No. 112 and 325, which we do not support. Intro.

         12  112-A appears to be based on a fundamental

         13  misunderstanding of how the Police Department

         14  investigates gun crimes and represents an unwise

         15  legislative intrusion into the operations of the

         16  Police Department, which would seriously damage our

         17  ability to fight crime.

         18                 The Council has neither the power nor

         19  the expertise to manage the operation of the Police

         20  Department in this manner.

         21                 Examples of some of our concerns with

         22  the bill follow. First, the bill purports to

         23  redefine the meaning of crime gun, a term which is

         24  in fact defined by the federal BATFE and it must be

         25  adhered to in order not to jeopardize our
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          2  close-working relationship.

          3                 In addition, expanding crime guns to

          4  include guns acquired through amnesty programs,

          5  thereby requiring their testing and tracing, could

          6  in effect destroy amnesty programs.

          7                 The reason an amnesty program

          8  succeeds, is that the public knows that in exchange

          9  for getting a gun off the street, the person turning

         10  it in will not be exposing themselves or others to

         11  criminal charges.

         12                 Perhaps most important the Police

         13  Department must retain the ability to determine

         14  whether a gun should be tested or traced.

         15                 For example, we may determine not to

         16  request that a gun be traced because the process of

         17  the trace itself might alert those who have

         18  participated in its illegal trafficking or use.

         19                 The discretion whether to trace a

         20  particular weapon must remain with the Department so

         21  as not to place our officers or others in mortal

         22  danger.

         23                 Second, the bill imposes a seven-day

         24  time limit on the Police Department to perform a

         25  ballistic test and commence a trace request, with
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          2  compliance apparently to be monitored by the BATFE.

          3                 It is impossible and improper for a

          4  local legislative body to attempt to enact a bill

          5  imposing a duty on a federal agency in this manner.

          6                 Further, the implication that the

          7  Police Department is failing or will fail to conduct

          8  ballistic testing or commence trace requests is

          9  baseless.

         10                 Third, the bill requires the

         11  Department to establish a protocol for sharing crime

         12  gun information electronically with the BATFE. To

         13  establish a model system for sharing information

         14  among other law enforcement agencies, and to contact

         15  Police Departments in at least 15 of the nation's

         16  largest cities to request their cooperation in

         17  developing a protocol to share information with the

         18  Department and the BATFE.

         19                 The bill ignores the already existing

         20  information sharing systems in place, and in fact

         21  presumes they do not exist. The bill seeks to

         22  require the New York City Police Department to

         23  dictate the terms and design the mechanisms for

         24  information sharing, not only with the BATFE, but

         25  also with other law enforcement agencies throughout
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          2  the country, matters well beyond the purview of the

          3  City Council.

          4                 Fourth, the bill requires the Police

          5  Department to perform pedigree and ballistics

          6  testing on any firearm owned by or issued to a

          7  police officer defined as any person employed by a

          8  City agency, who is authorized to carry or use a

          9  firearm in the course of their official duties.

         10                 It also includes employees of the MTA

         11  and the Port Authority, with the consent of those

         12  agencies, as well as any other agencies whose

         13  employees operate in New York City upon their

         14  request.

         15                 The bill requires the testing to be

         16  done at the Department's expense, and the results to

         17  be submitted to the BATFE and all other law

         18  enforcement agencies, with a protocol for sharing

         19  data.

         20                 The reason for imposing this crushing

         21  burden of testing all law enforcement weapons on the

         22  Police Department is unknown.

         23                 The bill also seems to ignore the

         24  existence of the pistol and revolver ballistics

         25  identification databank established by New York
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          2  State General Business Law Section 396-ff, which

          3  requires ballistic information for every handgun

          4  sold and shipped into New York State to be entered

          5  into an electronic databank maintained by the New

          6  York State Police.

          7                 If the Police Department is required

          8  to test thousands of weapons used by its own

          9  employees, as well as by employees of other

         10  agencies, the necessary work of testing and tracing

         11  guns with an actual nexus to crime could suffer

         12  greatly.

         13                 Fifth, the bill requires the

         14  Department to publish on a monthly basis a summary

         15  of the data on all firearms tested, including the

         16  name and state of origin of any firearms dealer

         17  through whose hands a crime gun passed.

         18                 The data upon which this report would

         19  rely is provided in large part to the Police

         20  Department from the BATFE, denoted as law

         21  enforcement sensitive, and it is not ours to

         22  release.

         23                 In addition, it is unknown whether

         24  there may be open criminal investigations in our or

         25  other jurisdictions, which may be compromised by
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          2  release of information regarding a chain of custody

          3  of a crime gun.

          4                 Finally, we would like to address

          5  Intro. 325, which bars the possession and sale of

          6  any firearm which is not personalized, or capable of

          7  firing only by a person it recognizes as an

          8  authorized user.

          9                 The ban would go into effect three

         10  years after such weapon becomes commercially

         11  available.

         12                 The bill relies on an extremely

         13  speculative technology. When and if smart gun

         14  technology becomes commercially available, the

         15  utility of the technology will have to be studied to

         16  determine whether such weapons do in fact enhance

         17  public safety.

         18                 In addition, the bill raises several

         19  legal issues, including whether it is preempted by

         20  state and federal law, and whether it violates the

         21  constitution's commerce clause. If a manufacturer is

         22  successful in developing the technology anticipated

         23  by the bill, that manufacturer might claim a virtual

         24  monopoly on gun sales in New York City, again

         25  raising issues that need to be studied in depth.
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          2                 The bill also imposes an unknown

          3  administrative burden on the Police Department to

          4  receive guns which will no longer be in compliance

          5  with this local law, therefore we ask the Council to

          6  refrain from approving Intro. No. 325.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  speak with you today, and we are available to answer

          9  any questions you may have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Prasso. Bear with us a few moments while we deal

         12  with some internal mechanics right now. We're going

         13  to be taking a vote on last week's -- on the issue

         14  we decided last week on security guards. But before

         15  we do that, let me announce that we've been joined

         16  here by Jeffrey Davis, brother of James Davis, who

         17  was a member of this Committee, not only a member

         18  but the Chair of our Subcommittee on Juvenile

         19  Justice and a leader in all issues involving gun

         20  violence and gun control, and you know, all the

         21  actions we take in this Committee revolving around

         22  gun control, we do all of those with your brother in

         23  mind, we do those in his memory, and we do those in

         24  debt to the work that he's done before us to make

         25  this easier for us. So, we thank you for coming down
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          2  today, and we look forward to working with you on

          3  this.

          4                 Let me get to some business. As you

          5  know, members of the Committee, the last hearing we

          6  had was on Intro. 569, which calls upon the State

          7  Legislature to allow municipalities such as New York

          8  City to adopt stricter laws in relation to training,

          9  background checks, licensing, registration of

         10  private security guards. We held this hearing, and

         11  we heard testimony from various different groups,

         12  every one of which supported this. One security

         13  guard, if you remember, actually described his

         14  duties as checking under cars for bombs with a

         15  mirror, with absolutely no instruction, and he said

         16  that he would not be able to tell the difference

         17  between a bomb, a transmission and a muffler. And

         18  this is the training that many people receive now in

         19  these extremely important areas such as bomb

         20  detection.

         21                 We cannot mandate any stricter

         22  training because the state has said we can't, and

         23  we're asking the state to allow us to do that.

         24                 In fact, we're also asking the state

         25  to allow us to do federal background checks, which
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          2  we can't do right now because the state does not

          3  require federal background checks, and we had

          4  testimony that there were actually situations where

          5  someone who had been convicted of a rape or a murder

          6  in another state was working here as a security

          7  guard.

          8                 So, in a City such as ours, in this

          9  age of terrorism, private security guards serve as

         10  our first line of defense, and it's one of our first

         11  lines of defense, and imperative that we be granted

         12  the authority to ensure that security guards are

         13  given the appropriate tools to do their job. I urge

         14  you to support this resolution, which is also backed

         15  by 32BJ and a number of other security guards and

         16  companies. And I will now call for a vote on that

         17  resolution.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

          7  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          8  abstentions, the item is adopted. Members, please

          9  sign the Committee report. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

         11  please hold that vote open for some other Council

         12  Members who may be appearing.

         13                 I'll get back to the testimony.

         14                 Mr. Prasso, thank you for testifying.

         15  So, it appears that you're in favor of three of the

         16  matters before us today, 144-A, which was introduced

         17  by Sanders, Councilman Sanders, requiring more

         18  information regarding the purchase of guns; and

         19  469-A sponsored by the Speaker, Council Member

         20  Yassky and myself, which raises the penalties for

         21  having assault weapons here in New York City. And

         22  you also support 490-A, which is my bill, which

         23  would limit a purchase of a rifle or a shotgun to

         24  one every 90 days, obviously with some caveat, but

         25  you do support them.
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          2                 112-A you don't support, and you say

          3  that it goes well beyond the purview of the Council.

          4  That's a bill that was introduced by Eva Moskowitz,

          5  who is going to attempt to come here today, and if

          6  she does, I'll let her question you about that,

          7  because I don't purport to be an expert on that bill

          8  at all.

          9                 Let me ask you a quick question to

         10  about the ones that we did discuss. I know you don't

         11  take position on the resolutions, but there is a

         12  resolution on today requiring the federal government

         13  to have a ballistics database, such as we have here

         14  in New York State, and I asked the Criminal Justice

         15  Coordinator about it and he referred to you. How

         16  have you found the ballistics database here in New

         17  York State to work; how has it been successful?

         18                 MR. PRASSO: I'm informed that we're

         19  studying that right now. We can't comment on it at

         20  this time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you know how

         22  long it's been in existence in New York State?

         23                 MR. PRASSO: We're going to have to

         24  get back to you on that, we're not exactly certain.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I am actually
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          2  very interested in knowing how a successful or not

          3  successful a ballistics database has been, bases

          4  have been here in New York State, so I would

          5  appreciate you getting back to me on that.

          6                 Council Member Yassky.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          8  Chair Vallone.

          9                 I have a several questions, but first

         10  just a couple preliminary things. Just on Intro.

         11  365, again, which is the code of conduct requirement

         12  for firearms dealers and manufacturers, I know

         13  there's been a lot of talk among the pundits about

         14  gun control is a political issue, and actually there

         15  was a New York Times op ed in the last couple of

         16  days saying, rather than focusing on gun control,

         17  government focus on gun safety. I want to be clear

         18  about this bill. This is a gun safety bill. It

         19  doesn't prohibit firearms, it does not put anybody

         20  out of business, it does not restrict the rights of

         21  law abiding New Yorkers, or anyone else for that

         22  matter, to own firearms. What it does say is that if

         23  you are going to be in the business of selling the

         24  most lethal consumer product available, then you

         25  ought to do it responsibly, and if there are steps
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          2  that we can take that we know for a fact will

          3  prevent somebody from being shot and possibly killed

          4  down the road, then you absolutely ought to do that.

          5  To do anything less ought to be criminal and it

          6  certainly is negligent, and you ought to be liable

          7  for that. That is the sole purpose of this bill.

          8                 I also want to say to my colleagues,

          9  Intro. 365 was introduced and developed both by

         10  myself and Council Member Eva Moskowitz, and I do

         11  want to make sure she is recognized for her

         12  contribution there.

         13                 Here's my questions for you. Do we

         14  know how many gun dealers, how many specific gun

         15  dealers in other states are selling, have sold more

         16  than 50 crime guns that were then found in New York?

         17  Can you tell me that?

         18                 MR. PRASSO: I'm advised that we're

         19  working on getting that information for you. We

         20  don't have it right now.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, I

         22  shouldn't ask about how many have sold ten or more,

         23  five or more, that's the same answer?

         24                 MR. PRASSO: The answer will have to

         25  be the same, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You probably

          3  recall this was more than two years ago now, some

          4  two years and several months ago, there was a

          5  shooting at Martin Luther King High School in

          6  Manhattan where one student was a student, I

          7  believe, shot two other students. There was then a

          8  New York Times article about the firearms used in

          9  that shooting which was sold by a dealer who had

         10  sold over 1,000 guns later traced to crime. It was,

         11  the dealer was -- they don't give the name, they

         12  don't give the name of the store in this article

         13  right here. Do you remember that case? Do you

         14  remember that incident?

         15                 MR. PRASSO: I do recall it. Not in

         16  very great detail, but I do recall it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is that dealer

         18  still in business? Do we know how many more crime

         19  guns that dealer has sold?

         20                 MR. PRASSO: I honestly do not know

         21  the answer to that question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you know if

         23  the Police Department ever sought to take action

         24  against that particular gun dealer?

         25                 MR. PRASSO: I would have to get back
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          2  to you on that, Councilman, I'm not sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: The Criminal

          4  Justice Coordinator earlier talked about the gun

          5  court and said that prosecutions for illegal

          6  possession are up. Do you know how many individuals

          7  have been prosecuted in the gun court?

          8                 MR. PRASSO: We would have to get back

          9  to you on that, Councilman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: If you don't

         11  know exactly, do you have a rough --

         12                 MR. PRASSO: No, I really don't.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Then my guess

         14  is you probably don't know what the answer to this

         15  question, and let me just make sure.

         16                 My question is going to be, out of

         17  how ever many gun possession cases were prosecuted,

         18  if it was a thousand, how many cases were you able

         19  to identify the criminal, which presumably it was,

         20  who sold the gun to the person arrested for

         21  possession. And I say criminal because as you know,

         22  90 to 95 percent of guns that are used in New York

         23  City crimes, are brought in illegally from out of

         24  state. How often, in other words, are you able to

         25  get the gun trafficker who is selling dozens, maybe
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          2  hundreds of guns here in New York, in addition to

          3  the person walking around with an illegal firearm?

          4                 That's not my soundtrack.

          5                 MR. PRASSO: Deputy Inspector O'Neill

          6  is going to answer that question for you.

          7                 MR. O'NEILL: Good morning.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Good morning.

          9                 MR. O'NEILL: My name is Deputy

         10  Inspector Brian O'Neill. I'm the Commanding Officer

         11  of the NYPD Organized Crime Investigation Division.

         12                 One of the units under my command is

         13  the Joint Firearms Task Force, which would handle

         14  the traces of firearms through the gun center, along

         15  with the Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco Firearms and

         16  Explosives.

         17                 I can give you some general numbers,

         18  Councilman, on guns recovered and some of the

         19  statistics on arrest.

         20                 In Calendar Year 2004, the crime guns

         21  recovered would be 2,343. Now, of those, when they

         22  went to the lab for testing, 397 of those had

         23  obliterated serial numbers and could not be traced

         24  further.

         25                 So, we actually attempted to trace a
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          2  total of 9,146 weapons. Of those, 1,198 were traced

          3  to the final sale.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: To what sale?

          5                 MR. O'NEILL: To the final sale.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Final.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Although, to

          8  clarify it for Council Member Reed, my guess is that

          9  he means the final sale by a licensed gun dealer,

         10  not the sale on the street.

         11                 MR. O'NEILL: Final legal sale, I

         12  should -- now to get to some arrest information. The

         13  Firearms Task Force will, based on those traces will

         14  conduct investigations even out of state, will go to

         15  the source states and try and determine who the

         16  purchases are and try and determine the route the

         17  gun took to New York.

         18                 So, again, for this year, they have a

         19  total of 62 arrests, 29 of which were specifically

         20  related to gun trafficking. Twenty-nine, twenty-nine

         21  were possession of firearms, 27 was for sale of

         22  firearms, and they have six others. They seized a

         23  hundred weapons, a hundred firearms, and we estimate

         24  the firearm impact which is 239 and I'll clarify

         25  what that number means. That 239 is the number of
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          2  firearms illegally purchased and/or trafficked into

          3  New York City by those arrested individuals for this

          4  year.

          5                 In addition to that, there were 11

          6  arrests by ATF outside of New York City based on

          7  investigations, so in addition to those, 27 and 29,

          8  there's another 11. Hopefully that answers some of

          9  your questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I think so.

         11  You're saying there were 27 NYPD arrests for illegal

         12  sale.

         13                 MR. O'NEILL: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Another 11 ATF

         15  were outside of state?

         16                 MR. O'NEILL: Right.

         17                 MR. PRASSO: And another 29 for

         18  possession, and that could very well relate to a

         19  trafficking, as well. There may not have been enough

         20  information to get a probable cause for an arrest by

         21  actual trafficking. But if he was a felon,

         22  previously convicted felon in possession of a

         23  firearm, we may have charged him with just a

         24  possession, which under federal law would be a

         25  substantial penalty as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you know,

          3  of those arrests, of the 27 arrests for illegal

          4  sale, how many of those resulted in convictions?

          5                 And I apologize, this was 2004 or

          6  2003?

          7                 MR. O'NEILL: 2004.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: This year to

          9  date. So, presumably some of those are still

         10  pending.

         11                 MR. O'NEILL: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I don't want

         13  to take the Committee's time, I don't know if you

         14  could get to me at another -- unless you have them

         15  handy?

         16                 MR. O'NEILL: No, I don't have them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: The numbers

         18  for 2003.

         19                 MR. O'NEILL: Certainly.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And then of

         21  those, how many resulted in convictions? That I

         22  think would be really enlightening.

         23                 MR. O'NEILL: All right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I was going to

         25  say, Mr. Chair, I don't have any further questions.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. For

          4  scheduling purposes, we are going to go to Council

          5  Member Dilan, who I believe is the last Council

          6  member at this point who has any questions at this

          7  panel. Then we will have Senator Schneiderman, if he

          8  is able to stay for a very brief statement, then we

          9  will have Jeffrey Davis for a brief statement, then

         10  we will have a panel of gun advocates, meaning

         11  NRA-associated groups, the we will have a panel of

         12  anti-gun advocates, meaning New Yorkers Against Gun

         13  Violence, Million Mom March and some other groups,

         14  and then associated others after that. So, that's

         15  the schedule that we should be attempting to adhere

         16  to.

         17                 Council Member Dilan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair. I just have two brief questions for Mr.

         20  Prasso.

         21                 On Intro. 144-A, in your testimony

         22  you cite some minor exemptions in Charter Section

         23  465; how does it differ? And could you please

         24  explain those exemptions from minus?

         25                 MR. PRASSO: Well, both sections deal
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          2  with exemptions to the rules, and there just is some

          3  minor difference in the language concerning minors.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I always assume

          5  that after the first phone rings, that everyone else

          6  will turn them off, but I guess that's my fault. So,

          7  please, everyone, put the cell phones on vibrate.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: If you had it

         10  available.

         11                 MR. PRASSO: Okay, in Section 465 of

         12  the Charter, it lists the different categories where

         13  there is an exemption, for example, persons in the

         14  military service of New York, persons in the

         15  military or other service in the United States,

         16  persons who are employed in fulfilling defense

         17  contracts, police officers as defined by our CPL,

         18  peace officers as defined by the CPL, and

         19  participants in special events when authorized by

         20  the Police Commissioner.

         21                 Now, the Ed Code has a similar list

         22  of exemptions, persons in the military of the State

         23  of New York, persons in the military in other

         24  states, of the United States or other states,

         25  persons employed fulfilling defense contracts, which
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          2  as you can see we're following, we're tracking a

          3  similar number of exemptions.

          4                 What we're really talking about

          5  Councilman, just very minor differences in the

          6  language, and it's our recommendation if you do take

          7  this up that you just address that and bring the two

          8  in conformity.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, I'm just

         10  trying to help the chair with a minor hurdle. I

         11  think this maybe can be done --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I should

         13  actually inform you that we are working with the

         14  Administration to get rid of those technicalities

         15  and they do support the bill right now, and we are

         16  going to work with them and craft a bill that they

         17  have no problems with.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, I look

         19  forward to this package as well.

         20                 On Intro. 112-A, I just, just from my

         21  perspective, some of the statements made in your

         22  testimony do have some merit, I'll take those under

         23  consideration.

         24                 But just a question on the Amnesty

         25  Program, when the Police Department does Administer
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          2  the Amnesty Programs, who are the weapons received

          3  and safeguarded and accounted for when the Police

          4  Department does run its Amnesty Programs, if you can

          5  speak on that?

          6                 MR. PRASSO: Just give me one second.

          7                 MR. RICHTER: Under the Amnesty

          8  Program it's handed in at the precinct, it's

          9  vouchered and it goes to the property clerk and it's

         10  destroyed. There's generally no questions asked.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: The guns are

         12  just destroyed, they're not ever used again? They're

         13  destroyed by the Department?

         14                 MR. RICHTER: That's my understanding,

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's Deputy

         19  Inspector Richter, correct, who just spoke?

         20                 MR. PRASSO: That's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I haven't

         22  introduced Council Member Reed. Thank you for

         23  joining us. Before you ask any questions, we might

         24  just take your vote on the security guard

         25  resolution.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Reed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And I neglected

          5  to mention, which you are also a sponsor. Thank you.

          6                 Council Member, the floor is yours.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay. You said

          8  you destroy the guns, but prior to that, is there

          9  any sort of examination of it, looking at its

         10  history?

         11                 MR. RICHTER: It would sort of defeat

         12  the purpose of the Amnesty Program.

         13                 What we're looking to do is --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I would

         15  disagree with you that it would defeat the Amnesty.

         16  You may have Amnesty, but nevertheless, it doesn't

         17  negate the curiosity we might have of where this gun

         18  may have been involved with the crime, or what, you

         19  know, it may give us some history or some example of

         20  how guns sort of get lost in the stream and then

         21  they show up. You could still offer the person

         22  Amnesty.

         23                 MR. RICHTER: Well, I think the fear

         24  behind that is that it would reduce the number of

         25  guns that come off the street.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do you think a

          3  lot of people know that this just goes from turning

          4  it in at the counter to being destroyed, like one

          5  step goes right to the bin? Do you think that's what

          6  really goes on out there?

          7                 MR. RICHTER: I couldn't really

          8  comment on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, you have

         10  in some ways. You said it would be a deterrent, so

         11  you must think that they know there's not only no

         12  questions asked, but no investigation of the gun.

         13                 MR. RICHTER: Well, I think it's

         14  generally understood that there are no questions

         15  asked. That's why people do turn them in.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: No questions

         17  asked of the person turning in the gun.

         18                 MR. RICHTER: That is correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And you think

         20  they also know there is not going to be no

         21  examination of the gun and its potential history or

         22  involvement?

         23                 MR. RICHTER: I couldn't answer that.

         24  But the gun is vouchered and it's processed at the

         25  property clerk.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Chair, I

          3  just think it would be useful for us to look into

          4  that. I don't think it's a deterrent. On the other

          5  hand, I don't think you're going to get witnesses to

          6  say that I'm not going to turn in the gun if you

          7  check its history -- but how many guns are turned in

          8  every year, in the Amnesty program?

          9                 I'm sorry, if you testified to it and

         10  I was late.

         11                 MR. RICHTER: I don't have those exact

         12  numbers. I can supply them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Could you ball

         14  park it for me?

         15                 MR. RICHTER: I believe that --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: More than ten?

         17                 MR. RICHTER: I couldn't give you a

         18  ball park number.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Nobody at that

         20  table has any idea of some broad approximation of

         21  how many guns are turned into the Amnesty Program?

         22  Is the Amnesty Program worth being bothered with?

         23                 MR. RICHTER: The Amnesty Program

         24  started May 7th, 2002, total to date is 2,396 guns.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.
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          2  That's not an insignificant number. So, of those

          3  guns, we have no history with no idea. I just think

          4  it's interesting, that it might be helpful. Thank

          5  you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: No, I absolutely

          7  agree. Let me clarify something.

          8                 The Amnesty program gives someone

          9  amnesty for turning in the gun. I'm assuming it

         10  doesn't give them amnesty for any crimes committed

         11  with the gun, correct?

         12                 MR. RICHTER: That would be a correct

         13  assumption.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, you're

         15  assuming, looking at this in the best light, that

         16  somebody is not going to turn in that gun, if they

         17  believe that some sort of investigation is going to

         18  be done with the gun that's going to link them to

         19  the crime, which is why you don't do it?

         20                 MR. RICHTER: Sorry, could you just

         21  repeat that question?

         22                 I'm assuming that --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That you won't

         24  get as many guns turned in if people believe that

         25  you're going to do a history of the gun once they
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          2  turn it in?

          3                 MR. RICHTER: Well, to the extent

          4  that, and, you know, this is myself as an individual

          5  speculating, but to the extent that we did an

          6  investigation of the gun that, say, you were

          7  delivering to the precinct, and we did a serial

          8  trace and we took your identity at the precinct, it

          9  seems to me that it would reduce the number of

         10  people that would come to the precinct with the gun,

         11  because it would link you to that gun in some form

         12  or other.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I mean, it may

         14  or may not be true, but at a minimum you should be

         15  asking these people for their consent. If I found a

         16  gun on the street and turned it in under the Amnesty

         17  program, I'd want you to check it and find out

         18  whether it was a murder weapon and at this point

         19  you're not doing that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Chair?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, Council

         22  Member Reed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I think we're

         24  all interested in reducing the number of guns on the

         25  street, but it seems to me, if I were hearing you
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          2  say Amnesty, I would think that I could walk up to

          3  the counter at a precinct, turn in a gun, not have

          4  to identify myself, and then walk out. Now the

          5  police have a gun, so they could still do some

          6  history of that gun. It doesn't interfere with the

          7  Amnesty aspect of it. Here it is. Good-bye. So, I

          8  think maybe we're not on the same wavelength in

          9  terms of not wanting to interfere with the option

         10  that people have that makes them feel like they

         11  could turn in a gun and not be called to question

         12  about it. But nevertheless, it might help us

         13  significantly, those of us who are interested in

         14  solving crimes, and getting guns off the streets, to

         15  at least take a cursory look at what is this gun and

         16  what is its history.

         17                 MR. RICHTER: I'll take your comments

         18  and your considerations and your recommendations

         19  back, and, you know, the Police Department will look

         20  at it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         24  Reed, you just said if you walked into a precinct

         25  and did that it could be worse. I mean, if you
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          2  committed a crime with that gun, and put it in a

          3  garbage can and they found it, they would be able to

          4  trace it maybe back to you. If you walked into the

          5  precinct and gave it to them, they would destroy it

          6  and they'd be pretty much an accomplice in the

          7  crime, because they would be destroying a gun which

          8  could be a murder weapon, without anyone ever

          9  finding out.

         10                 I don't believe we feel this is the

         11  right way to dispose of guns and we look forward to

         12  working with you on this, and hopefully getting you

         13  to change that policy, but I don't think we're done

         14  yet.

         15                 Council Member Katz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm still

         17  unclear, because what Phil said, what Council Member

         18  Reed said I thought was different than what the

         19  officers said.

         20                 Since he's the one that answered, I

         21  have a gun, I walk into the precinct, I put the gun

         22  on the table; is my name taken?

         23                 MR. RICHTER: No, it's not.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, the name of

         25  the individual is not taken when they drop off a
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          2  gun. So, I guess it begs the question that if the

          3  name of the individual is not taken when they drop

          4  off a gun, what would be the harm in doing a check

          5  of the history of that gun. Prints, whether it's

          6  been fired. I think there's a certain amount of time

          7  when you can tell if a gun has been fired, things of

          8  that nature, such that there's residue on the gun.

          9                 MR. RICHTER: I think that yourself

         10  and the Councilman are raising some valid points and

         11  the Police Department will look at that, and the

         12  history behind the Gun Amnesty Program and, you

         13  know, what the thinking was in going into it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you for

         15  the compliment, but the answer to the question would

         16  be what? You said none of that is done at all right

         17  now. Like we have a person that dropped it off. It's

         18  anonymous. Nobody knows their face or their name.

         19  Now they drop a gun off, that gun is just destroyed.

         20  None of that information is taken?

         21                 MR. RICHTER: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         23                 So, well, I guess that answers my

         24  second -- Mr. Chair, what I was thinking of is

         25  whether or not if they took the name, you obviously
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          2  can't use that gun now in evidence. If there's a

          3  murder committed, you can't use that gun in

          4  evidence, I would assume, because it's amnesty. They

          5  don't get amnesty for the crime, they get amnesty

          6  for the use of that gun as in evidence, as an

          7  evidentiary material in the trial, I'm assuming.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I love the way

          9  we're all assuming. We have the actual Police

         10  Department here.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, but we

         12  asked them --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know. I'm

         14  assuming differently. I believe they get amnesty for

         15  possession of the gun, that's it. But why don't we

         16  find out?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Let me just ask.

         18                 It's not just -- answer, tell me if

         19  I'm wrong or right. It's not just amnesty of having

         20  the gun because since they don't give their name,

         21  there would be no reason to have amnesty for having

         22  the gun.

         23                 I mean, obviously, unless you stopped

         24  them on the way in and said what are you doing with

         25  that gun. But, I mean, you know, obviously when they
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          2  drop the gun off, the amnesty is not necessary

          3  because there is no name connected to that gun.

          4                 MR. RICHTER: It's an amnesty for an

          5  unlawful possession of the gun.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          7                 So, when you're handing it over you

          8  have a gun.

          9                 MR. RICHTER: There's no amnesty for

         10  any type of a crime related to that gun.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, then

         12  let's not beat a dead horse. I think that we need to

         13  look at what happened. I mean, everybody wants to

         14  get guns off the street. There's no doubt about

         15  that. But the obvious concern is that you commit a

         16  murder, you drop the gun off, let me say that that's

         17  a key part of the evidence used against you in

         18  court, and then you lose that opportunity.

         19                 I'd rather see, just for the future,

         20  that maybe the names of the folks be taken, so maybe

         21  they get amnesty for dropping off the gun, but at

         22  least the fact that they dropped off a gun perhaps

         23  could be used at some point, I don't know. But we'll

         24  look at it into the future. Thank you for clarifying

         25  it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And I also think

          3  it's important that the gun be checked against what

          4  we have now in New York State, which is a database,

          5  and hopefully what we'll have on the federal

          6  government soon, which is a ballistics database,

          7  which is why we have these things.

          8                 Let me take a vote from Council

          9  Member Gentile.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         11  Gentile.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

         14  eight in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         15  no abstentions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         17  Council Member Yassky I believe had another

         18  question?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, I just

         20  want to quickly follow then.

         21                 Mr. Chair, it has been my position

         22  actually since the program started, and I would just

         23  share it with the rest of the Committee, I share

         24  your belief that I think the Amnesty program is

         25  actually counterproductive, for whatever good it
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          2  does, it also allows criminals to essentially

          3  eliminate evidence that may somehow be found at some

          4  point.

          5                 I just want to also be clear, though,

          6  I would like to clarify for the Committee. When you

          7  say amnesty, you're not using it in any legal sense

          8  like in unity? I don't think there's ever been any

          9  court ruling or any legislative declaration that

         10  people who turn in guns have an actual legal

         11  immunity from prosecution. You're saying the Police

         12  Department practiced not to follow-up with any

         13  investigation based on these guns, but people don't

         14  get any actual legal immunity based on the act of

         15  turning in the gun; is that correct?

         16                 MR. RICHTER: There is a Section 265

         17  of the Penal Law that does grant limited immunity

         18  for criminal possession of a weapon to an individual

         19  who brings the firearm to a precinct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So a criminal

         21  possession of the weapon. They have immunity from

         22  criminal possession, okay. Thank you. That's

         23  helpful.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, it does

         25  seem to defy common sense that someone can bring a
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          2  gun into a precinct, have it destroyed, no questions

          3  asked, and thereby eliminate potentially a murder

          4  weapon, and leave crimes unsolved that may have been

          5  sitting unsolved for a long period of time. So,

          6  hopefully we'll be working together to change that.

          7                 Council Member Gonzalez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes, good

          9  morning.

         10                 I just have a question back to the

         11  statement you made about vouchering. Exactly what

         12  does vouchering mean in respect to this? I just want

         13  to understand that. Whose name goes on, and is there

         14  anything returned? You know, who submits the

         15  vouchering, because I understand vouchering to mean

         16  something else.

         17                 MR. PRASSO: When I used the term

         18  "vouchering" I am referring to a Police Department

         19  procedure by which a police officer would take in

         20  property and process that property through the

         21  Police Department.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: But not the

         23  person who is giving the gun in. In other words,

         24  it's a procedure within internal?

         25                 MR. PRASSO: That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. You should

          5  have never brought up that amnesty program just as

          6  you were getting ready to leave. That will teach

          7  you.

          8                 The last question will come from

          9  Council Member Gentile.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Good morning. I didn't hear your

         13  comments about the ATF national tracing center. So,

         14  forgive me if you answered this question, but what

         15  is it that the New York City Police Department does

         16  beyond just reporting serial numbers to the national

         17  tracing center?

         18                 Do you have some type of program by

         19  which you work with ATF and the National Tracing

         20  Center to try to locate somewhere along the line

         21  where a gun has entered, maybe there's a break in

         22  the sale of the gun so that you try to determine

         23  where that market is, that illegal market.

         24                 MR. O'NEILL: Again, Deputy Inspector

         25  O'Neill. Yes, absolutely. We have a task force with
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          2  NYPD supervisors and detectives, along with ATF

          3  supervisors and agents. They worked as partners.

          4  After the traces are done, we will follow that up

          5  with investigations with our detectives actually in

          6  many cases taking trips with their agent

          7  counterparts to other states, and conducting

          8  investigations on the ground, interviews, et cetera,

          9  to try and determine where exactly that gun came

         10  from and how it go to New York.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And has that

         12  resulted in actually identifying where the illegal

         13  market for a particular gun has come from?

         14                 MR. O'NEILL: I hope I understand your

         15  question. We have found that obviously there are

         16  many states that --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Virginia

         18  being one of them and North Carolina being another.

         19                 MR. O'NEILL: Yes, we're familiar with

         20  many states where these guns are coming from. And

         21  they are being bought legally by the local state

         22  law, and then finding their way up here, and that's

         23  what on a case-by-case basis the detectives and

         24  agents will do is determine how it got from there to

         25  here. We already know when we start where the gun
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          2  was recovered. That's how our investigations start,

          3  with the trace of a found crime gun or a recovered

          4  crime gun.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: What are

          6  those top three states from which guns are coming

          7  into New York City, and on the illegal market?

          8                 MR. O'NEILL: Well, we deal with ATF,

          9  all that information is technically there's and I

         10  have been requested by the SAC in New York of ATF,

         11  not to get into specific trace information, but from

         12  my experience, I can definitely speak to my

         13  experience, we feel with Virginia, New York is

         14  actually one of our top source states itself,

         15  Pennsylvania, the Carolinas, Georgia, those are all

         16  what we could call source states.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Do you have

         18  any particular program directly with those source

         19  states, in terms of investigations, joint

         20  investigations in the illegal market?

         21                 MR. O'NEILL: Well, we deal

         22  specifically with the ATF here in New York, but as

         23  where we travel around the country, we would be

         24  dealing with the ATF agents in those states as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, you're
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          2  dealing particularly with the federal officials in

          3  those states?

          4                 MR. O'NEILL: This program, yes, deals

          5  with federal officials.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: In those

          7  states?

          8                 MR. O'NEILL: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And have they

         10  resulted in prosecutions? Have those joint efforts

         11  resulted in prosecutions?

         12                 MR. O'NEILL: Yes. I gave some

         13  statistics a little earlier on numbers of arrests

         14  for the year, which was 29 for criminal sale, 27,

         15  let me just review that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: But are those

         17  numbers a result of these efforts across the country

         18  in these source states?

         19                 MR. O'NEILL: Yes. Yes, they are.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, they're

         21  not local illegal market arrests and prosecutions?

         22                 MR. O'NEILL: The firearms task force

         23  deals predominantly going out of state and

         24  conducting those investigations. Could some of these

         25  arrests been made local? Yes, if we determined that
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          2  it was a local person who actually went down helped

          3  facilitate the transfer of the weapons right here in

          4  New York. Obviously some of the arrests might be

          5  local but it would be based on an interstate

          6  trafficking case.

          7                 There is another unit, Firearms

          8  Investigations Unit, that would conduct local

          9  firearms investigations, much the way a Narcotics

         10  Unit would go out, try and locate gun sellers in the

         11  street, buy them and arrest them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, the

         15  schedule that we were going to attempt to adhere to

         16  has already been changed because I don't believe

         17  Assemblyman Schneiderman was able to stay, Jeffrey

         18  Davis is apparently going to be returning, but

         19  before I let you go let me again say that it seems

         20  to defy common sense that a gun can be turned into

         21  the Police Department and not tested to see if it's

         22  been used in a murder or in a crime, potentially

         23  murder weapons are being turned into the police and

         24  destroyed by the police, and this isn't a situation

         25  that we should allow to continue.
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          2                 So, that actually wasn't even a topic

          3  we were going to be discussing today, but it is

          4  something we will be working with you on, we thank

          5  you for your testimony regarding all of our other

          6  bills, and we look forward to working with you on

          7  those. I know that we're very close on most of them.

          8  And I know that Councilman Yassky looks forward to

          9  sitting down with you on his matter in private,

         10  which you have apparently guaranteed that that would

         11  happen. So, he looks forward to that.

         12                 And Jeffrey Davis has returned, so

         13  we're going to ask you to testify next, Mr. Davis.

         14                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Davis. Again, I won't

         16  repeat what I said when you were standing there

         17  before, but we are happy to have you with us here

         18  today and we greatly appreciate the legacy left by

         19  your brother, and this hearing, as are all of our

         20  hearings, especially dealing with gun issues, where

         21  he was such a leader, we hold in his memory.

         22                 Thank you for joining us.

         23                 MR. DAVIS: Thank you. All right, I

         24  just want to say a few things. First and foremost,

         25  Chair, thank you for having me, Councilman. Across
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          2  the board, hello everyone.

          3                 Today, as I stand in this building,

          4  that many consider the most powerful building in the

          5  City of New York, I stand with two views, one filled

          6  with pride, honor and dignity, and the other in

          7  shame and sadness. My father fought in World War II

          8  and my mother marched on Washington. So many leaders

          9  have died. President Abraham Lincoln, Dr. Martin

         10  Luther King, Jr., and my brother, Honorable

         11  Councilman James E. Davis. Sadly enough, all on

         12  balconies.

         13                 Oh, how quickly we forget and cover

         14  our eyes and heart knowing that the act committed

         15  towards James right here in this building, was an

         16  act of terrorism, and clearly, it could have been

         17  anyone.

         18                 If it were you, would you want

         19  someone to stand up for what you believe in? I stand

         20  here today to denounce violence of all forms,

         21  whether it be verbal, domestic or physical. I stand

         22  here today and say clearly a large number of weapons

         23  used in criminal activity are weapons smuggled in

         24  from other states, particularly southern states.

         25                 More than 80 percent of guns used in
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          2  crimes located in New York City come from out of

          3  state. These states have weak gun laws, or their

          4  laws are not properly enforced.

          5                 Corrupt dealers are responsible for

          6  the largest total number of illegally diverted

          7  firearms. Just one percent of federally licensed

          8  dealers are responsible for more than one half of

          9  gun crimes.

         10                 These weapons are devastating our

         11  communities. They are used to kill, steal and

         12  destroy the very fabric of our lives. My mother's

         13  heart, Thelma Davis, is broken beyond repair. My

         14  heart is broken beyond repair. My brother's heart

         15  lies still in the Evergreen Cemetery, with countless

         16  victims of gun violence. If years and years have

         17  gone by and guns continue to find their way to New

         18  York, then clearly it is time for a gun industry

         19  responsibility act to become established.

         20                 And if a dealer or manufacturer fails

         21  to comply with the codes, they should be held

         22  accountable financially to the victim's family.

         23                 I'm grateful that Councilman Davis

         24  Yassky has taken a stand, as he promised.

         25                 I urge each of you under the sound of
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          2  my voice to take a stand and sign on as promised.

          3                 I marched on Washington with my good

          4  friends from the Me and Mammas March (phonetic).  To

          5  bring attention to this matter, if I must, I'll walk

          6  to Washington. As these hearings conclude with the

          7  hope of an overwhelmingly response, I ask the

          8  Council for one more request, a request that a

          9  hearing take place on what went wrong on July 23rd,

         10  2003. I say that again. I request a hearing take

         11  place on what went wrong on July 23rd, 2003, so that

         12  your lives are not taken away from you and your

         13  families do not suffer as mine has.

         14                 On behalf of DTTS, that stands for

         15  Dedicated To The Struggle, community alert and the

         16  James E. Davis Stop Violence Foundation, and on

         17  behalf of your late, great colleague, and friend,

         18  and my brother, I say love yourself and stop the

         19  violence.

         20                 Thank you for hearing me. God bless.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Davis. And you're our late great colleague and

         23  friend, and your brother is sorely missed by this

         24  Council and by everyone in New York City, and rest

         25  assured that we are working as hard as we can here
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          2  and with your assistance to do what we can to keep

          3  illegal guns off the street, double the penalties,

          4  but doing more than doubling the penalties, to give

          5  the police the methods they need to get them off the

          6  street, to go after responsible gun dealers, and we

          7  look forward to continuing to work with you in

          8  James' memory --

          9                 MR. DAVIS: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: -- To eradicate

         11  this problem from our City.

         12                 MR. DAVIS: You're doing a great job.

         13  Thank you. Keep up the good work.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         15                 MR. DAVIS: Reach out to me, I'm here

         16  for you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. DAVIS: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         21  Jeffrey, as always, for your continued, continued

         22  dedication. Thank you.

         23                 MR. DAVIS: You're welcome. Thank you.

         24  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thanks. Next
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          2  panel will be Barry Cohen from New York State Rifle

          3  and Pistol Association, along with Anthony Imperato,

          4  along with Henry Repeating Arms.

          5                 Thank you for coming down today,

          6  gentlemen. Please identify yourselves, and you may

          7  proceed in whatever order you determine. And if you

          8  have prepared testimony, please hand it to the

          9  Sergeant-At-Arms.

         10                 MR. IMPERATO: Hi. My name is Anthony

         11  Imperato, from Henry Repeating Arms. I'm the owner

         12  of the company. It's an 81-employee manufacturing

         13  concern in Brooklyn, New York. I'm also Vice

         14  President of John Jovino Company, the oldest gunshop

         15  in New York City. We've been in business since 1911.

         16                 MR. COHEN: I'm Barry Cohen. I'm the

         17  Director of Public Relations of the New York State

         18  Rifle and Pistol Association.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Why don't, Mr.

         20  Imperato, you go first. I believe he testified at

         21  the last hearing.

         22                 MR. IMPERATO: I testified the last

         23  time. I don't have anything written prepared, but

         24  I've been doing this for 30 years, and I'm well in

         25  touch with our industry. I know exactly how it
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          2  works, the manufacturers, the wholesalers, the

          3  dealers and the system. Feel free to ask me whatever

          4  you'd like, I'll share with you everything as

          5  honestly as possible. Forgive me, I'm a little bit

          6  nervous.

          7                 I can tell you very clearly that the

          8  gun industry shares your feelings and your emotions.

          9  We are against violence. We are against crimes. We

         10  are against crime guns. We're dead set against it.

         11  If you walk through an NRA convention, or you walk

         12  through what's called a shot show or trade show,

         13  you're going to find the most law-abiding citizens

         14  in the country, if I could tell you that. I'm open

         15  to any question. You have the opportunity to talk to

         16  a person who has 30 years of experience in our

         17  industry. Our company, John Jovino Company, in

         18  Manhattan, we have sold millions of firearms,

         19  millions, primarily to law enforcement agencies

         20  around the country, but concentrated in the tristate

         21  area of New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, et

         22  cetera.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me ask you

         24  two quick questions.

         25                 MR. IMPERATO: Yes, sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before we move

          3  on, since you're the owner of a dealership. We have

          4  a bill here introduced by James Sanders, which would

          5  require you to take more information when a gun is

          6  sold; would that affect your business in any way?

          7                 MR. IMPERATO: It would not affect our

          8  business. I'm not specific with all of the

          9  specifics, but we have no objection to taking

         10  information.

         11                 You know, we operate today with the

         12  federal guidelines where we work with the New York

         13  City regulations, which are very strict, we work

         14  with the federal regulations which are very strict,

         15  with regard to the background checks and the FBI

         16  nicks (sic) checks, et cetera.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me hear the

         18  rest of the testimony and then we may come back.

         19                 MR. COHEN: Thank you. I'm pleased to

         20  testify today on behalf of the Association. The New

         21  York State Rifle and Pistol Association is the New

         22  York State affiliate of the National Rifle

         23  Association.

         24                 In the interest of time, I'm going to

         25  very heavily excerpt the document that's been given
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          2  out. I hope you'll read it all. You'll find a number

          3  of situations where the bills under discussion today

          4  are similar to bills we've commented on previously

          5  and we direct your attention to testimony that was

          6  given a year ago September.

          7                 We have a variety of bills and

          8  resolutions before us this morning, and as usual

          9  they're based on a variety of false hopes and false

         10  premises. Laws are for the law abiding. We've said

         11  this here before and it bears repeating, laws are

         12  for the law abiding. Imposing further burdens and

         13  restrictions on New York City's heavily taxed and

         14  intensely-regulated licensed dealers of firearms and

         15  ammunition and on intensely regulated gun owners

         16  will not reduce crime.

         17                 As we heard the Mayor's Criminal

         18  Justice Coordinator say last September, licensed gun

         19  owners are not the problem, and just a little bit

         20  earlier you heard Mr. Prasso say that licensed gun

         21  owners are not the problem. For this transcending

         22  central reason, the Association opposes all of the

         23  intros and resolutions before us today.

         24                 In addition, the Association opposes

         25  specific intros and resolutions on specific common
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          2  sense and legal grounds, as I will detail briefly,

          3  and as we have detailed in prior testimony.

          4                 Let's start with Intro. 325 on

          5  personalization. The Association opposes Intro. 325

          6  and I don't know how I can say it any better than

          7  Mr. Prasso just did, but I will offer a few

          8  comments.

          9                 This bill is an attempt to restrict

         10  the commerce and to saddle New Yorkers with unproven

         11  and potentially unreliable and dangerous technology

         12  under the guise of protecting children.

         13                 The casual reader of this proposal

         14  would think that New York City suffers from an

         15  epidemic of handgun accidents involving young

         16  children. In fact, these tragic accidents are

         17  extremely rare, and I believe that you know this.

         18  According to the Centers for Disease Control, in

         19  1998 through 2001, the last year for which complete

         20  state level data are available at the CDC's website,

         21  only five children under the age of ten died in

         22  firearms-related accidents in all of New York State.

         23                 Several, if not all of those deaths,

         24  were the result of a law enforcement officer failing

         25  safely to secure or handle a firearm. Of course, law
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          2  enforcement insists on being exempted from this and

          3  virtually every other gun control bill considered by

          4  this body.

          5                 The CDC does not report handgun

          6  accidents separately from other firearms accidents,

          7  nor does it report how many of those incidents

          8  occurred in New York City. But these statistics will

          9  make it clear that there is no epidemic and that

         10  this bill is a solution in search of a problem.

         11                 While most recent accidental

         12  tragedies involving New York youngsters and guns

         13  involve guns belonging to members of law enforcement

         14  services, we cannot forget that only 35,000 New

         15  Yorkers lawfully own handguns, while 2 million other

         16  firearms and their owners have opted out of an

         17  increasingly abusive and nutty regulatory scheme.

         18                 This law will not reach them either.

         19  In fact, it will be one more demand side driver in

         20  the local market for undocumented firearms.

         21                 As noted above, the bill would exempt

         22  handguns sold to law enforcement officers. The

         23  sponsors of this bill apparently appreciate that law

         24  enforcement officers, who not only have a worse

         25  record than civilians in safely storing their
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          2  firearms, but are also at greater risk of losing

          3  their firearms to criminals in close quarters,

          4  refuse to trust their lives to unproven and

          5  troublesome technology. Why then should private

          6  citizens be held hostage to this technological

          7  pipedream?

          8                 Are our lives worth any less?

          9                 This bill will have additional

         10  unanticipated consequences. Our complete testimony

         11  discusses several issues relating to the transfer of

         12  handguns and licenses in New York City to other

         13  jurisdictions and vice versa.

         14                 There is one other unanticipated

         15  consequence that's somewhat personal and if you'll

         16  indulge me, I'd like to mention it briefly.

         17                 Competitive pistol shooters, and

         18  there are more of us than you might think in New

         19  York City, including one of the top finishers in

         20  2004 national championships, use expensive,

         21  low-volume handmade pistols.

         22                 The manufacturers of these guns do

         23  not have the resources to create personalization

         24  systems, and will have to end their sales to New

         25  York City competitors.
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          2                 Since we will not be allowed to

          3  dispose of our grandfathered pistols by selling them

          4  to new competitors, high level competitive pistol

          5  shooting will gradually die out in New York City, as

          6  current competitors retire from the sport.

          7                 One of the teams we compete against

          8  in the Greater New York Pistol League is made up of

          9  firefighters. Who, on this Committee, will volunteer

         10  to tell the firefighters if their team is going to

         11  expire along with the others?

         12                 Finally, what happens when

         13  personalization technology is introduced, is found

         14  not to work and is withdrawn?

         15                 Will we be left with this law on the

         16  books and no guns to buy? Or to need and run around

         17  the Second Amendment? As is so often the case,

         18  technology is not the answer. Education is the

         19  answer. The NRA's Eddie Eagle Program teaches

         20  children to leave the area and call an adult if they

         21  come upon a gun. Can we afford not to teach this

         22  lesson to our children? But will we rely on a false

         23  technological promise?

         24                 I'd like to turn to Intro. 112 on

         25  firearms tracing and data sharing. The Association
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          2  opposes Intro. 112. This bill creates a significant

          3  workload for the Police Department without

          4  addressing funding or resources. Moreover, the

          5  requirement that data on the manufacturers and

          6  sellers of crime guns be made available to the

          7  public on a monthly basis, may tend to stigmatize

          8  gun manufacturers and dealers who conduct business

          9  according to all applicable laws.

         10                 It is certain that these data will be

         11  used in conjunction with Number 365, if passed, to

         12  try to drive New York City gun dealers out of

         13  business, despite their compliance with all

         14  applicable laws.

         15                 The Association generally opposes

         16  legislative branch attempts to micromanage law

         17  enforcement with unfunded mandates and politically

         18  fashionable legislation.

         19                 Law enforcement is an executive

         20  function of government with executive

         21  accountability.

         22                 This is why the Police Department is

         23  chartered as a mayoral agency, and not an agency of

         24  the Council.

         25                 A final point of information.
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          2  Paragraph J, the term "disaggregated" is misused.

          3  Disaggregated data would be case level data,

          4  including the names or identities of crime victims

          5  that are meant not to be divulged. The proper term

          6  in this context is aggregated.

          7                 Finally, I'd like to briefly address

          8  Intro. 469 on assault weapons. The Association

          9  opposes Intro. 469. Intro. 469 is largely of the

         10  "make the rubble bounce" species of legislation, it

         11  does not break new ground, it merely breaks old

         12  broken ground without building anything new.

         13                 The portion of Intro. 469 that raises

         14  the rifle and shotgun permit age from 18 to 21 is

         15  subject to the same objections we previously made to

         16  legislation encompassing this provision.

         17                 The portion of Intro. 469 dealing

         18  with so-called assault weapons, proposes increased

         19  penalties and mandates triannual review of the

         20  Police Commissioner's schedule of rifles to be

         21  banned by make and model.

         22                 The association opposes laws that

         23  attempt to regulate behavior by restricting the

         24  availability of tools to the law abiding.

         25                 It will not answer to ask "who needs
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          2  a Kalashnikov to go hunting." We live in a

          3  supposedly free society, where a government official

          4  should never feel entitled to ask the citizens why

          5  they want a toaster oven, a five-gallon bucket, a

          6  good set of kitchen knives, a baseball bat, a

          7  particular car, or any given firearm.

          8                 Each can be neglected or abused with

          9  fatal results. The focus should always be on

         10  deterring criminal behavior, not on scapegoating

         11  equipment. Banning particular rifles according to

         12  the definitions in the City assault weapon ban, the

         13  State assault weapon ban, or the recently expired

         14  federal ban, is the policy-making equivalent of

         15  addressing dangerous automobile racing on public

         16  streets by banning cars with spoilers, racing

         17  stripes, cosmetic air intakes and fancy hood

         18  ornaments, as well as Ferraris, Corvettes, Camaros,

         19  Trans-Ams and Datsun and Nissan Z cars by name.

         20                 We don't make that confused mistake

         21  with bad drivers and high performance cars. We

         22  shouldn't make it with criminals and any class of

         23  firearms.

         24                 And that concludes my excerpt. If you

         25  have any questions, I'll be happy to take them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          3                 You said that law-abiding gun-owners

          4  are not the problem, and I happen to agree. However

          5  you then went on to oppose some of our introductions

          6  today which increase penalties for illegal guns.

          7                 Council Member Yassky, the Speaker

          8  and myself have introduced one which increases the

          9  penalty, the civil penalty for an assault weapon

         10  from 2,000 to 25,000. Do you oppose that? That's not

         11  a law-abiding citizen who has that, why would you

         12  oppose that?

         13                 MR. COHEN: We oppose the whole

         14  concept of an assault weapons ban based on cosmetic

         15  features of a gun --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's not a ban.

         17  I mean, we can discuss that at another time. We're

         18  talking about someone who has an illegal assault

         19  weapon. Did not get it legally. They're getting

         20  punished now more than they would be punished. Do

         21  you have a problem with that?

         22                 MR. COHEN: Well, I'm not specifically

         23  addressing that. You may find reference to that in

         24  the written testimony.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: In addition, I
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          2  have a bill in which will increase the level of

          3  punishments for someone who is illegally selling ten

          4  weapons or more. I want to lower that number,

          5  because this is how we get rid of drug traffickers,

          6  but you've opposed that one also.

          7                 I'm trying to find a common ground

          8  here, but it appears that we can't find any. Why

          9  would you oppose increasing the penalties for

         10  someone who is selling three weapons, as opposed to

         11  ten?

         12                 MR. COHEN: Well, I have to direct you

         13  to the full testimony to see if there's a further

         14  discussion for that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         16  Yassky.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         18  Maybe you can help in directing us where in the

         19  testimony that is. Because I was curious about that.

         20  You, in just your talking, in your spoken testimony,

         21  stated opposition to a bill introduced by Chair

         22  Vallone that would effectively increase penalties

         23  for illegal gun sellers. These are, right now as the

         24  chair just explained, here you go --

         25                 MR. COHEN: Which introduction are you
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          2  referring to?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Res 78.

          4                 MR. COHEN: Res 788.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes. And your

          6  opposition says the state should not enable New York

          7  City's neurotic gun control policies, should not

          8  enable their --

          9                 MR. COHEN: Res 78?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: It's on page

         11  ten of your testimony.

         12                 Let me make sure you understand what

         13  the Chair is trying to accomplish here. This would

         14  deal with people who are guilty of violating New

         15  York Penal Law provisions prohibiting selling guns

         16  without a license to do so. The illegal competitors

         17  to this gentleman here. But right now to get the

         18  enhanced penalties available for gun trafficking,

         19  you have to, the courts have held that the police

         20  have to prove that you sold ten guns in one

         21  transaction. It's not enough even to sell five guns

         22  today, but five guns at ten o'clock in the morning,

         23  and then another five at noon. They have to prove

         24  that you sold ten or more in one transaction to get

         25  the enhanced penalty. The Chair is proposing to
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          2  amend that so that they only prove that you sold

          3  three or more in a single-- illegally in a single

          4  transaction to get the penalty. You opposed that?

          5                 MR. COHEN: I would have to take that

          6  up with our board and see if we would care to amend

          7  our testimony.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, I would

          9  recommend that you do that. That seems to me to be

         10  inconsistent with your stated opposition to illegal

         11  gun trafficking.

         12                 Sir, I know you appeared last time. I

         13  do not have your testimony in your last appearance

         14  before me.

         15                 MR. COHEN: When I appeared last time,

         16  I was a civilian, I was not then a member of the

         17  board.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, I

         19  understand.

         20                 I'm speaking to the other witness.

         21  What's your name?

         22                 MR. IMPERATO: Pardon me?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: What is your

         24  name again?

         25                 MR. IMPERATO: My name is Anthony
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          2  Imperato. I'm sorry, I didn't realize you were

          3  addressing me.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, your

          5  clientele or your customers are largely law

          6  enforcement did you say? Do you also sell to

          7  individuals?

          8                 MR. IMPERATO: Our business has

          9  changed over the years. Our primary business for the

         10  last ten years is manufacturing under the brand

         11  Henry Repeating Arms. Henry was the rifle that in

         12  essence changed what happened during the Civil War,

         13  and we make primarily firearms that were used in the

         14  Civil War Wild West era, and we sell to a select

         15  group of wholesalers who then in turn sell to the

         16  retail outlets.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: These are long

         18  guns, rifles?

         19                 MR. IMPERATO: We make rifles, that's

         20  our business. However, I still feel, I know our

         21  industry very well, and I could speak on behalf of

         22  the handgun manufacturers, and discuss the nature of

         23  our industry, which has changed dramatically in the

         24  last ten, 15 years.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, here is

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  my question for you. If Glock, or Stern Ruger

          3  (phonetic), or any of the large handgun

          4  manufacturers, when they are told by the ATF that

          5  one of their guns is being traced because it was

          6  used in a crime, and the ATFS, who did you sell this

          7  to, and they typically respond quickly, now as I

          8  understand it, they say it was sold to Joe's gun

          9  shop in Norfolk, Virginia, and if they get one trace

         10  like that a week that was sold to Joe's gunshop in

         11  Norfolk, Virginia, what does Stern Ruger or Glock do

         12  about that?

         13                 MR. IMPERATO: I can't speak

         14  specifically exactly what they would do, but a

         15  company like --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Rather than

         17  any particular company then, what would a typical

         18  manufacturer do?

         19                 MR. IMPERATO: It could draw up a red

         20  flag where that manufacturer, considering today's

         21  climate of litigation would then talk to his

         22  wholesaler and say we just had three traces for

         23  Joe's gunshop, who is the guy looking to it, et

         24  cetera. And that's most likely what would occur.

         25                 A company like Stern Ruger, who does
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          2  200- 300-million dollars a year and Glock, which is

          3  the largest manufacturer of law enforcement weapons,

          4  they don't want to jeopardize their business over

          5  crime guns. They want their products to go into

          6  law-abiding citizens' hands. You know, they're not

          7  sitting there in the sales room scheming, oh, how

          8  could we get some more guns into the marketplace by

          9  funneling them to some illegal dealers. That's the

         10  last thing they want on their plate. They have

         11  business things to tackle like any other business,

         12  and they honestly want gun violence to go away, and

         13  they don't want their guns to go into the hands of

         14  criminals.

         15                 The nature of our industry has

         16  changed somewhat in the last ten years, in that

         17  there used to be about 300,000 FFL holders. That's

         18  somebody who can engage in the sale of a firearm.

         19  Today it's down to 80,000, and many of those are

         20  collectors and special licenses and stuff like that.

         21                 So, it has dwindled and our industry

         22  does look at this, that we want guns only going into

         23  legal purchases, legal sales, et cetera. We don't

         24  want this kind of activity. We're dead set against

         25  it.
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          2                 And I look at it this way, you know,

          3  I have three teenagers, I'm worried about crime in

          4  New York City myself, and I don't want illegal guns

          5  coming up from Virginia or the Carolinas, et cetera,

          6  but let's use Mr. Davis' tragedy as an example, with

          7  all due respect to his memory. That was a crime of

          8  passion and that gun was purchased legally in South

          9  Carolina or North Carolina. A sheriff did some type

         10  of background check, and the person that bought the

         11  gun bought that gun legally. He committed a crime by

         12  coming up here and, unfortunately, and tragically,

         13  killing Mr. Davis, but, now, can you go back and

         14  blame the gun manufacturer who sold it to a

         15  legitimate good dealer whose been in business for

         16  many years, that he sold that gun legally, where a

         17  sheriff checked out the gun sale and this guy

         18  traveled up here to kill him? You can't blame

         19  whoever the manufacturer was, I forget who it was, I

         20  don't want to mention names, I just honestly don't

         21  remember. But that was an example.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: But let me

         23  just ask you this, though, if it had turned out, as

         24  I'm recognizing was not the case in the murder of

         25  James Davis, that is the case in other shootings in
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          2  New York, that that gun dealer sold not to the

          3  resident of the State, but to somebody who had come

          4  from New York to buy guns illegally for resale back

          5  here in New York, using false identification, and

          6  that that dealer had a history of doing that based

          7  on ATF gun traces, would then you consider that the

          8  manufacturer should have done something about that?

          9                 If I understood you, you're saying

         10  how can you hold the manufacturer who is a perfectly

         11  responsible gun dealer with no bad record? But what

         12  if there is a bad record?

         13                 MR. IMPERATO: It would be quite

         14  difficult, really, for the manufacturer to know. You

         15  know, unless some circumstances like you created

         16  before, a specific dealer all of a sudden had three

         17  or four traces in a row and it was some terrible

         18  crimes, et cetera, it would draw up a red flag,

         19  because the manufacturer does not want to have

         20  litigation and products liability and insurance go

         21  up and possibly put them out of business. It

         22  certainly would. We clearly don't want guns in the

         23  hands of wrong people. And if there's a bad dealer,

         24  we want that person shut down. But we don't want to

         25  be blamed for that. That's up to BATF or individual
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          2  state's regulations in Virginia or North Carolina.

          3  They have to deal with it. You can't blame the

          4  Rugers, the Glocks, the Smith and Wessons, the

          5  Henrys, the Remmingtons, you cannot.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes. No, I

          7  understand where you're coming from. I guess, do you

          8  think the threat of litigation does get

          9  manufacturers to try and force, get gun dealers to

         10  be -- change the way they do business?

         11                 MR. IMPERATO: Absolutely. Our

         12  industry, we are not the tobacco industry, sir. We

         13  don't have billions and billions of dollars of

         14  profit. We are actually a small industry. We cannot

         15  afford this kind of thing. And from a moral

         16  standpoint, we don't want it to happen. We're really

         17  trying, we're doing our best within the

         18  circumstances. We don't want guns in the wrong

         19  people's hands for our own children's safety.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I agree.

         21  And Mr. Chair, that's exactly the purpose of this

         22  bill, is to give, make sure that the responsible

         23  members of your industry have an incentive not to

         24  deal with irresponsible ones, and to make sure that

         25  that's not dependent on the vagaries of the court
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          2  decision case-by-case, but to spell out a clear code

          3  of conduct so people know exactly what's required of

          4  them, so that they don't have to fear litigation, as

          5  long as they live up to the code of conduct.

          6                 MR. IMPERATO: Excuse me. When we do a

          7  gun trace, all of the major manufacturers, they

          8  report back in minutes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: They do?

         10                 MR. IMPERATO: Minutes. Or less than

         11  minutes, some of them, because they have very

         12  sophisticated systems, back to the Police

         13  Departments or the BATF tracing center. We work with

         14  them hand-in-hand. We are against gun violence, we

         15  are against gun crime, I can't tell you enough, but

         16  we cannot be blamed for these few bad apples that

         17  exist out there.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, as

         19  provided that you either stop doing business with

         20  the bad apples, or you do whatever is required to

         21  change them so they become good, tasty apples. I

         22  mean, I think that's the point here. The point is,

         23  if you're getting a trace request every week from

         24  the same gun store, then you know there's a problem,

         25  and you said a minute ago, you would expect a
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          2  responsible gun company to -- you expect that would

          3  raise a red flag, and you would expect the

          4  responsible manufacturer or wholesaler to get on the

          5  phone and say, you better shape up or forget it, we

          6  don't need you. And I want to just make sure that

          7  does happen.

          8                 MR. IMPERATO: Let me just say where

          9  our industry has been heading over these last few

         10  years, and there are really fewer manufacturers and

         11  they're better, there are fewer wholesalers and they

         12  are better, meaning 90 percent of the business that

         13  is done in our industry is done through a select

         14  group of wholesalers, about 20 to 25, that do

         15  between $25 million annually at the low end, and a

         16  couple of million dollars at the high end. Those

         17  folks sell everything from fishing lures to rifles

         18  to go hunting. They don't want to jeopardize their

         19  business. That group of 20 or 25 sells to about

         20  10,000 retail outlets around the country. That is

         21  the bulk of the industry. And we all know each

         22  other, we watch each other and we want to make sure

         23  the best, even though we're competitors, the health

         24  of our industry, we don't want this black eye. We

         25  don't. We're good people. We're honest people. We
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          2  don't want guns involved in crimes. We want violence

          3  reduced.

          4                 I just wanted to mention one thing.

          5  Chairman Vallone asked about the ballistics testing

          6  before, and while it just popped into my mind, from

          7  what I was told this morning, and I may be incorrect

          8  in that very little has worked out as far as the

          9  ballistics testing. Maryland has had it for several

         10  years, and they had four guns, all of which they

         11  already had information on, that New York has had it

         12  for four years and they've gained nothing by it.

         13                 I'm just citing that as the

         14  statistic. I was told have no opinion on it one way

         15  or the other, but that's the information that I was

         16  told.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         18                 Thank you, Chair Vallone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. Just

         20  to add to what you said, you said there were fewer

         21  but they're better. There are also, I believe, and

         22  you can correct me if I'm wrong, Councilman Yassky,

         23  seven percent of the dealers responsible for 90

         24  percent of the crime guns, guns that have been

         25  traced to a crime, that's what we're trying to get
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          2  rid of here, not the overwhelmingly law-abiding

          3  portion of this industry. And you probably should

          4  know there is a bill that exists here in the Council

          5  to hold gun manufacturers strictly liable, that is

          6  one I think goes way too far, I'm not sure what the

          7  Council Members' position is, but this is not that

          8  bill. This bill that will only hold this gun company

          9  liable if they violate a code of conduct, which

         10  Council Member Yassky is working with the industry

         11  on.

         12                 And I was going to introduce, well,

         13  Council Member Monserrate has joined us, Chair of

         14  our Veterans' Committee. Councilman Gennaro just

         15  stepped out for a moment. We need to take your votes

         16  on an issue as soon as Councilman Gennaro walks back

         17  in.

         18                 Let me just say quickly to you, Mr.

         19  Cohen, I don't know if you were here before, and I

         20  said we're trying to find common ground. I own a

         21  rifle. In fact, one of the local papers called me a

         22  "rifle toting former Prosecutor," which is

         23  technically correct, I guess, but not the best way

         24  to put it. Maybe rifle-owning dad. But I think that

         25  in order to keep the right to legally own a weapon

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  in existence, we need to step up our efforts to get

          3  rid of illegal guns. We've increased the penalties

          4  for illegal guns, go after distributors, go after

          5  bad manufacturers and dealers, and I believe if you

          6  want a machine gun join the National Guard, and when

          7  you oppose these things, just kneejerk oppose these

          8  increased penalties for really bad abusers here, you

          9  seem like you're being as neurotic as your opponents

         10  are, and I don't think that's at all helpful.

         11                 Council Member Monserrate.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair. I'd like to take the opportunity to vote

         14  on Reso 569. I vote in the affirmative, and I have

         15  to depart, I have to prepare for a joint hearing

         16  with the Mental Hygiene and the Veterans Committee.

         17  Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Seeing that there are no more

         21  questions of this panel, we are now going to have

         22  our panel consisting of Andy Pelois and Jackie Kuhls

         23  from New Yorkers Against Gun Violence, Sara Alcoff

         24  from the Million Mom March, Verzon Fonville from All

         25  Eyes On Me, and Gail Mitchell, National Organization
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          2  for Empowering Caregivers.

          3                 Council Member Gennaro, if you

          4  please, give us your vote on the Reso 569 regarding

          5  security guards.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Am I on here?

          7  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, I was a proud sponsor

          8  of Reso 569. I thank you for your leadership in this

          9  regard, and all the other sponsors, and I proudly

         10  vote yes on Intro. 569.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote on Resolution

         13  569 is now ten in the affirmative, zero in the

         14  negative and no abstentions. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         16  Councilman Gennaro. And I know that many of our,

         17  even these witnesses who are testifying have worked

         18  with you in your capacity as chair of our

         19  Environmental Committee. So, thanks for coming down.

         20                 Thank you. If you'd all just identify

         21  yourselves, and I guess we could start my left to

         22  your right.

         23                 MS. ALCOFF: Sara Alcoff, with the

         24  Million Mom March, Brooklyn Chapter president.

         25                 MR. FONVILLE: Hi. My name is Verzon
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          2  Fonville. I'm Chief Executive of All Eyes On Me,

          3  Incorporated, a non-for-profit organization that's

          4  also affiliated with Brooklyn South and Coney Island

          5  Sharks.

          6                 MR. PELOSI: Andy Pelosi, Executive

          7  Director, New Yorkers Against Gun Violence.

          8                 MR. KUHLS: Jackie Kuhls, Director of

          9  Public Policy, New Yorkers Against Gun Violence.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Again, for no

         11  apparent reason we'll just start on this side, and

         12  go across.

         13                 MS. ALCOFF: On behalf of the Million

         14  Mom March, New York City Chapter, I would like to

         15  thank the City Council for continuing to take the

         16  leadership and finding ways to protect our children

         17  through common sense gun laws.

         18                 Because the current climate in

         19  Washington is not producing common sense gun laws,

         20  it is all more important that New York take the lead

         21  to protect its citizens.

         22                 According to our New York City Police

         23  Department's COMSTATs, we know that in New York City

         24  we had 598 murders last year. That means that every

         25  single day in New York City we lost one or two
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          2  people to gun violence last year.

          3                 We are thankful that our City Council

          4  is introducing legislation today that will help save

          5  lives. Throughout the years too often we've all felt

          6  hopeless at funerals, today we are hopeful because

          7  you are making a difference and continuing the work

          8  of our slain friend City Council Member James Davis.

          9                 The Million Mom March united with the

         10  Brady Campaign strongly believes that irresponsible

         11  gun manufacturers, and dealers, whose conduct

         12  contributes to gun violence in the City of New York

         13  should be legally accountable for that conduct as

         14  provided in the YASSKY Gun Industry Responsibility

         15  Act. However, because our affiliated organization,

         16  the Brady Center to Prevent Gun Violence, represents

         17  the City in its pending lawsuit against the gun

         18  industry, we do not feel it is appropriate for us to

         19  comment on specific liability-related proposals.

         20                 We also strongly support Introduction

         21  325, and the concept of childproof guns and agree

         22  New York should join New Jersey in requiring the use

         23  of technology for these personalized guns, a

         24  reasonable time after the technology is available.

         25                 We are cheered to learn that the New
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          2  Jersey Institute of Technology expects to deliver

          3  new commercially and ready childproof handgun by

          4  January 2006.

          5                 We also support Resolution 78 which

          6  calls for the State Legislature to make it easier to

          7  pursue and prosecute illegal gun traffickers.

          8  Legislation necessary taken to protect the brave

          9  police officers working to keep illegal guns off our

         10  streets.

         11                 I would like to read part of a letter

         12  from one of these brave officers. Detective Adam

         13  Frasse, a member of the New York Police Department

         14  Firearms Investigation Unit. I write this letter,

         15  not as an 18-year-old veteran detective with the New

         16  York City Police Department, but as a concerned

         17  parent, husband, son and American citizen. However,

         18  because of experience as a law enforcement

         19  professional, I feel that my attitude toward guns

         20  and gun violence comes not from political or

         21  financial agenda, but from the real life experience

         22  of death, senseless crimes and the heartaches of

         23  loss.

         24                 When dealing with something as

         25  dangerous as a firearm, it alarms me that so many
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          2  people throw common sense to the forewind. Our laws

          3  as a nation concerning firearms are so void of

          4  common sense, it would be comical if it didn't cost

          5  so many lives. Guns, especially handguns in today's

          6  society, are tools to commit crimes to hurt and to

          7  kill human beings.

          8                 Spare me the talk of the sportsman

          9  and the recreational shooter, the hunter and the

         10  outdoorsman. I could drone about how to accommodate

         11  those persons' needs and urges to fire a gun. For

         12  example, firing ranges and hunting grounds, renting

         13  weapons to prospective shooters, but I don't want to

         14  claim to have all the answers. What I do want to

         15  touch upon is how the amount of people killed by

         16  guns in the United States is so troubling, that it

         17  moves me to write.

         18                 I am not an activist, nor I am an

         19  overly political person. I do feel so very strongly

         20  about the need to revamp our laws concerning guns,

         21  especially New York City.

         22                 The fact that assault weapons ban was

         23  allowed to expire with little or no outcry boggles

         24  my mind.

         25                 You could argue until doomsday about
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          2  the little impact that assault weapons have on crime

          3  statistics, and I would still tell you you're wrong.

          4  Why does a private citizen need the fire power to

          5  take out tanks, to protect itself from the

          6  government?

          7                 I seriously doubt it. Making these

          8  weapons unavailable made sense, and a new law needs

          9  to be enacted soon and with a more all encompassing

         10  ban. Close the loopholes and get the law passed. It

         11  makes good sense.

         12                 The Gun Industry Responsibility Act

         13  also sounds to me like a common sense piece of

         14  legislation. Why wouldn't we want gun dealers and

         15  manufacturers to ensure their products are being

         16  sold in a responsible manner, and to those persons

         17  the law deems acceptable to become gun owners? Once

         18  again, common sense should prevail. But as shown in

         19  the past, the gun agenda people throw a fog around

         20  the second amendment, and accuse those who disagree

         21  with them as unAmerican.

         22                 Finally, Detective Frasse strongly

         23  support Resolution 78l and he says, "I would like to

         24  touch on a subject that is extremely personal to me,

         25  and should be to all of you who are New York City
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          2  residents.

          3                 On March 10, 2003, two undercover

          4  detectives from the New York City Police Department

          5  Firearms Investigation Unit were brutally murdered

          6  during an illegal gun buy operation in Staten

          7  Island. As a member of this unit, that I am proudly

          8  a member of, the mere mention of that date sends

          9  chills through my body and haunts me to this day.

         10                 The fact that Detective Jay Andrews

         11  was a very close personal friend of mine saddens me

         12  and will forever.

         13                 Without going into too much detail,

         14  the Firearm Investigation Unit's mission is to

         15  target criminals who deal guns on the street, launch

         16  major investigations, utilizing whatever agencies

         17  and resources available, seize as many weapons as

         18  possible, and arrest and hopefully incarcerate the

         19  dealers.

         20                 Our main source, which is the New

         21  York State penal law, falls to be of much assistance

         22  in this battle. The mere possession of a loaded

         23  firearm on the street is deemed more serious than

         24  selling a firearm illegally. That crime is

         25  classified as a B felony.
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          2                 Resolution 78 will make the charges

          3  concerning the criminal sale of a firearm a more

          4  serious crime, and would impose stiffer jail

          5  sentences on illegal gun runners and traffickers,

          6  who are polluting our streets with instruments of

          7  death and violence.

          8                 Think of it as another anti-terrorism

          9  law. The importance of passing this bill is

         10  monumental in the fight against illegal gun

         11  trafficking, and the fight to stop gun violence. If

         12  these common sense ideas are not put in place, I

         13  know that our fight against gun violence and the

         14  death of my friend, Detective Jay Andrews and

         15  Detective James Nemorin, will have been for very

         16  little. It is all in the name of safety, quality of

         17  life and the freedom of fear of becoming a victim.

         18  Please take this issue seriously. Thank you."

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         20  your testimony and for your support of Resolution

         21  78, which I introduced obviously, and I agree

         22  completely with you. But you should know it was

         23  written in large part by my Ted Baecher, my counsel

         24  next to me, who whenever I'm increasing the

         25  penalties for these kind of things, it's Ted Baecher
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          2  that comes up with it. So, thanks for your help.

          3                 MR. FONVILLE: Good morning, Peter

          4  Vallone, and the rest of the Council members. Again,

          5  my name is Verzon Fonville. I represent All Eyes On

          6  Me, Incorporated, which is related with Coney Island

          7  Sharks and Brooklyn South.

          8                 I'm here today to present to you

          9  petitions signed by teachers in law enforcements,

         10  who in some way encountered their acts of illegal

         11  handguns that's been in our community. Today I just

         12  want to give you some ideas on how easy it is for

         13  thugs and people to, easy to get these illegal

         14  handguns from Virginia and North Carolina. I,

         15  myself, 15 years ago was convicted of a crime of

         16  assault on a police officer which illegal handguns

         17  were used which I caused physical injuries to the

         18  officer.

         19                 I'm here today again, as I say, to

         20  speak and give you some idea of the minds of some of

         21  the thugs that are on these streets who does not

         22  care about the children and the safety of our

         23  community people and taxpayers, just the minds of

         24  these guys that get these guns that are empowered,

         25  feel empowered by these guns, and when they feel
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          2  empowered by these guns, they just -- they just

          3  actually don't care. We just really need to look at

          4  the aspect of what's going on about these illegal

          5  guns that are hitting our streets and start holding

          6  the gun industries reliable (sic) or responsible for

          7  these guns that are hitting these streets, and the

          8  way these guys are so easily (sic) to get these

          9  guns. If you get a North Carolina ID or driver's

         10  license, it's easy to go down there and just go to

         11  Wal-mart or a store and purchase bullets, you can go

         12  inside and purchase bullets and come back and sell

         13  them to your friends in the neighborhood.

         14                 We can also go down there and buy

         15  guns and connect ourselves with those illegal guys

         16  that are down in North Carolina and Virginia and

         17  these areas who are selling these illegal handguns

         18  and bring them back to the New York City area. It is

         19  so easy for them to do that.

         20                 Today I urgently ask that the

         21  Committee really take a strong look at how these

         22  guns is being brought to New York and targeting

         23  these manufacturers and gun dealers who sell these

         24  guns, and to the illegal people who get these guns,

         25  again, like I said, I'm one who come from these
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          2  streets, and when we get these guns, and those guys

          3  who get those guns do not care. They do not care,

          4  they don't care who they fire upon when they're

          5  angry and mad at those who they're trying to get at,

          6  and they have not been in their firing range

          7  practice to even learn how to shoot at their target.

          8  They're just shooting, and they're shooting at

          9  anybody. They don't know how to shoot these guns

         10  again, they just shoot and then hoping they hit the

         11  intended target. And in the process of that they're

         12  hitting innocent bystander people.  We really have

         13  to take stronger looks, or acts, on these gun laws,

         14  and be more stiffer on the penalties that need to be

         15  on these gun industry manufacturers for allowing

         16  these guns to come into New York City.

         17                 Today I thank you for letting me sit

         18  here and explain somewhat of how, you know, of these

         19  guys that are from in New York feel and what we do,

         20  and I'm here myself to explain again, I've changed a

         21  lot. I've seen, I've been -- you have to actually be

         22  on these streets to understand how these guys think

         23  and what they do with these guns, illegal guns, and

         24  now that the bill is not -- a bill was not signed

         25  back in effect for illegal handguns, they're back on
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          2  the market, and they're going to be flooding our

          3  streets again. The officers are very afraid, our law

          4  enforcement is very afraid, our teachers are, kids

          5  is out there, and these guns is back on the market

          6  and they're going to be hitting our streets again

          7  that are going to be in the hands of people who

          8  don't care, and they again is going to be firing

          9  those guns upon our children.

         10                 I thank you very much for listening,

         11  and, again, we hope and pray that we can really

         12  back-up David Yassky's bill on responsibility and

         13  holding these people reliable for the acts of their

         14  guns hitting our streets, the illegal guns. Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Fonville. It's refreshing to see someone come in and

         18  actually take responsibility for past acts, use

         19  that, turn it into something good, come down here,

         20  which is not easy and give us some very useful

         21  testimony about how easy it is to buy these guns out

         22  of state and bring them here.

         23                 I have some questions when everyone

         24  is done.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 And I know you have at least seven

          3  pages of testimony, and I know you're going to be

          4  summing it up.

          5                 MS. KUHLS: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

          7                 MS. KUHLS: Yes, I'm Jackie Kuhls,

          8  Director of Public Policy of New Yorkers Against Gun

          9  Violence. I'll touch on highlights of our testimony

         10  and then Andy Pelosi, the Executive Director, will

         11  offer some comments as well.

         12                 Tough local laws are more important

         13  now than ever, given the efforts by Executive and

         14  Legislative Branches in Washington to block sensible

         15  gun laws. Federal law-makers have abdicated their

         16  role in helping to reduce the number of illegal guns

         17  that cross from states with weak gun laws to states

         18  with strong laws like New York.

         19                 The enactment of federal licensing

         20  and registration and background checks at gun shows

         21  would significantly help stem the tide of illegal

         22  guns that flow into New York City.

         23                 Unfortunately, these issues are

         24  unlikely to be championed by President Bush or

         25  Congress in the near future.
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          2                 The assault by federal law-makers on

          3  gun laws goes further than simply denying sensible

          4  legislation. This President and Congress have eroded

          5  existing laws and practices that have helped combat

          6  gun violence.

          7                 They allow the ten-year old federal

          8  assault weapons ban to expire on September 13th of

          9  2004. This law had a variety of loopholes and was

         10  not perfect. It should have been strengthened and

         11  made permanent. Instead it was allowed to lapse.

         12                 Federal law-makers also attempted to

         13  make things more difficult for cities and states,

         14  trying to prevent gun crime by advocating laws that

         15  shield the gun industry from culpability in the

         16  rampant trafficking of guns throughout the United

         17  States.

         18                 Early in 2003, the House passed a

         19  bill giving unprecedented legal immunity to the gun

         20  industry, and this summer the Senate came close to

         21  passing a similar bill.

         22                 This immunity legislation would have

         23  prevented individuals, as well as localities, such

         24  as New York City, from seeking court settlements

         25  designed to make gun companies more responsible for
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          2  the weapons they create and sell.

          3                 Congress inflicted further damage to

          4  local efforts to prevent gun violence by limiting

          5  access to data on crime guns. Information on crime

          6  guns, where they come from, and how they get into

          7  the hands of criminals is critical for developing

          8  and implementing the most effective measures to

          9  prevent gun violence.

         10                 The ATF is the best source for this

         11  information, since they maintain a database of trace

         12  crime guns from around the country. Beginning in

         13  1997 and through 2000, the ATF published youth crime

         14  gun initiative reports that provided aggregate crime

         15  gun information for major cities in the United

         16  States.

         17                 This was useful to both law

         18  enforcement and to law-makers.

         19                 A little notice provision inserted in

         20  the federal appropriations bill this year, they

         21  represented a Todd Tiart of Kansas, effectively

         22  ended publication of the youth crime gun initiative

         23  report, by making ATF funding contingent on a

         24  prohibition of sharing data on crime gun traces.

         25                 This amendment also requires that no
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          2  Freedom of Information requests in general be

          3  denied.

          4                 So, what do we do in the face of

          5  these regressive actions by federal law-makers? The

          6  answer is clear. Local and state governments must

          7  act to prevent themselves in the most proactive way

          8  they can.

          9                 According to the ATF, 85 percent of

         10  trace New York City crime guns came from other

         11  states in 2000. We, of course, have this information

         12  only because it was available prior to the TR

         13  prohibitions on sharing information. We must look

         14  critically at our laws and our implementation and

         15  see what more we can do to reduce the number of our

         16  residents killed by guns.

         17                 Hundreds of people die from gun

         18  violence each year in New York City. In 2002 Health

         19  Department's statistics show that 461 people were

         20  killed by guns in New York City, thousands more were

         21  injured. This is in public health crisis. Today's

         22  agenda includes several resolutions and bills that

         23  will be particularly effective.

         24                 Now, I'm just going to highlight some

         25  of our comments on these different measures. Intro.
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          2  No. 112. We ask that the Council pass this bill. We

          3  do ask that an amendment be added to this that

          4  requires the tracing, also go through a New York

          5  State ballistic database, which is called CoBIS, the

          6  Combined Ballistic Integration System.

          7                 The current distant database has not

          8  been cleared regularly due to a logistical problem.

          9  This question was asked before the Police Department

         10  and they did not have an answer for you, so we're

         11  trying to provide some clarity to this.

         12                 The reason that this database is not

         13  cleared regularly is that Congress prohibited use of

         14  some federal ATF equipment for these queries to

         15  occur.

         16                 It's our understanding the Police

         17  Department is working with the ATF to resolve this

         18  and to get the queries done and it's our

         19  understanding also that the New York State is doing

         20  this around the State as well.

         21                 In addition, it should be noted that

         22  time to crime, in terms of the time, from the time

         23  the gun is sold to when it's going to turn up in a

         24  crime, and where queries are most likely to be

         25  successful is generally three to eight years after
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          2  the sale of the gun.

          3                 This database has been established

          4  for about three years, so we would just start to

          5  expect some hits around now.

          6                 But, again, they need to, they being

          7  the New York City Police Department and ATF need to

          8  work aggressively and make sure the system is used.

          9                 In addition, we would just like to

         10  know, on Resolution 49, that we, again, we

         11  wholeheartedly support this resolution. We do want

         12  to add, though, that the bill should include both

         13  bullets and shell casings for guns that do not

         14  readily eject shell casings when fired. Guns such as

         15  the revolver that's used at the scene of the crime

         16  is very unlikely to include droppings of casings at

         17  the scene. So, the bill that we are supporting

         18  expands the CoBIS not only to long guns, but also to

         19  guns that don't readily eject shell casings.

         20                 We definitely support Resolution No.

         21  85 on the Blast Act, and we do ask that the City

         22  Council adopt that resolution.

         23                 We also wholeheartedly support Intro.

         24  No. 365, the GIRA Act, and we would like to note

         25  that over the last two weeks we have been soliciting
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          2  support from residents around New York City, and we

          3  have over 500 post cards to enter in as Exhibit A,

          4  in terms of support for this, this intro.

          5                 Intro. 325, we did want to make some

          6  more specific comments on this, that this, there has

          7  been some testimony here that tried to kind of

          8  diminish the importance of this saying, well, it's

          9  only five children killed in five years, each of

         10  those children's death is tragic.

         11                 In addition, there's other

         12  unauthorized persons that get a hold of guns,

         13  including suicides. So, it's important to include

         14  that thinking in terms of support for this bill, and

         15  as well as the fact that guns tend to be the most

         16  likely, or one of the most attractive items stolen

         17  when burglars break into a home, so this would also

         18  help in terms of illegal guns on the market and

         19  being inoperable by folks who would want to steal

         20  them.

         21                 So, we are in support of that intro.

         22                 For Intro. No. 490, restricting

         23  firearm acquisitions is one of the key methods of

         24  thwarting gun traffickers. We support the limitation

         25  of firearm purchases to one per 90 days.
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          2                 We do want to ensure that this law is

          3  enforced once passed.

          4                 The bill should include a charge to

          5  the Police Commissioner to establish a mechanism and

          6  a background check that would deny a purchase to an

          7  individual on record as purchasing a gun in the

          8  previous 90-day period.

          9                 Intro. No. 144, we do strongly

         10  support and recommend its passage. And Intro. No.

         11  469, we just are very supportive of these creative

         12  ways to increase the effectiveness of New York

         13  City's assault weapons laws, and we want to note

         14  that we, we being New Yorkers Against Gun Violence,

         15  in conjunction with over 30 other state gun violence

         16  prevention groups, worked hard to get the federal

         17  law improved and in doing so we got 75 law

         18  enforcement officials to sign a letter showing their

         19  support. It's attached as Exhibit D, and we do want

         20  to note that nationally over 2,000 sheriffs and

         21  police chiefs support a strong assault weapons ban.

         22                 Resolution No. 597, we would just

         23  like to note that the Council should call on the

         24  State to pass a stronger state assault weapons ban.

         25                 The state's current assault weapons
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          2  ban has a two characteristic test and many copycat

          3  assault weapons on the market easily evade this law.

          4                 There are two bills, one in the

          5  Senate, one in the Assembly, that address these

          6  issues, and the need for this ban is evidenced by

          7  something we've attached as Exhibit C. According to

          8  data from the UTF, from 1995 to 2000, 656 copy cat

          9  assault weapons were traced in New York City. So,

         10  you see that as the federal ban that banned 19

         11  weapons by name, and became effective '93, '94, that

         12  copy cat weapon problem rose. So you can look at

         13  that graph and see the level of that problem.

         14                 And, finally, on Resolution No. 78,

         15  we wholeheartedly support lowering the threshold for

         16  possession and trafficking charges, and we would

         17  like you to know, in honor of the two undercover

         18  detectives who have been mentioned before who were

         19  killed on Staten Island, we wholeheartedly support

         20  this resolution, and we would like to make the law

         21  such that our police officers can enforce it without

         22  such threats to their own safety.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. You

         24  should know that the resolution was introduced a

         25  month after the incident of Staten Island by myself
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          2  and does reference them. So, we are keeping them in

          3  mind. So, thank you.

          4                 Last, but not least.

          5                 MR. PELOSI: Thank you, Chairman

          6  Vallone, Jackie has hit the major points and I know

          7  that we don't want to belabor things.

          8                 I just would like to say two things.

          9  One with respect to the personalized guns. I think

         10  that in addition to what Jackie had mentioned, I

         11  think that there needs to be a reporting requirement

         12  in here, something to the effect that either

         13  Criminal Justice Coordinator, or the Police

         14  Commissioner, would be charged with reporting back

         15  to the Council on the status of the technology. This

         16  is something New Jersey has done with their law.

         17  They charged the Attorney General with that, with

         18  that responsibility, so that you would know where

         19  things stand with the technology.

         20                 The other point I think really

         21  relates to Intro. 365, and though we just made quick

         22  mention of it in our comments, in our testimony we

         23  go into more detail.

         24                 If we're looking at all these

         25  measures, and I don't want to rank one over the
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          2  others, but I think we know this, it's been stated

          3  til we're blue in the face, it's the illegal guns is

          4  the biggest problem facing New York City right now,

          5  and we need to look at and come up with policies and

          6  procedures that stop these guns before.

          7                 It's important to raise penalties in

          8  certain instances, but what we need is prevention.

          9  We need to stop the guns before they come into New

         10  York City.

         11                 This type of legislation is creative

         12  and would really put us out in the forefront in this

         13  country in addressing illegal guns. So this is a

         14  major initiative for New Yorkers Against Gun

         15  Violence. We cannot, we can't urge you any more

         16  strongly that we'd love the Council to pass this

         17  bill as soon as possible so that we can start seeing

         18  results from this legislation. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

         20  many of the changes you're suggesting, we've already

         21  begun researching whether we can put them into the

         22  bill.

         23                 So, thank you for that.

         24                 Council Member Yassky, do you have a

         25  statement?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

          3  you. I want to thank the whole panel. Of course,

          4  Chair Vallone, I also want to note that I know she

          5  had to leave just a few moments ago, but in

          6  attendance here for most of this morning was Donna

          7  Diaz Thomasis (phonetic), the founder of Million Mom

          8  March, the originator of the first Million Mom

          9  March, which I think was really one of the signal

         10  organizing efforts on any issue that we've had in

         11  the last couple decades, so we were fortunate to

         12  have her here with us.

         13                 Mr. Fonville, thank you so much for

         14  coming here this morning to really give some real

         15  examples of what we're talking about here. All the

         16  numbers in the world don't tell as much as a single

         17  story as often, and in your testimony you talked

         18  about people going to North Carolina with a phony

         19  driver's license. Does that happen? Do people from

         20  New York go to other states with phony ID cards and

         21  get guns and bring them back here and sell them on

         22  the street?

         23                 MR. FONVILLE: It's very easy for

         24  people from New York, from here to go on down, to

         25  travel to Virginia and North Carolina, just stay
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          2  there and getting maybe a phone bill or something

          3  like that in their name and then they can go to the

          4  DMV and inquire, they have an ID.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Now, do you

          6  know, do people tend to go to a particular gun

          7  store? The reason I ask is, it's true, as Chair

          8  Vallone said the other day, or rather earlier today,

          9  that it's a small fraction of gun stores that

         10  account for a huge proportion of the illegal gun

         11  traces. And I'm wondering, do you think that gun

         12  traffickers single out particular stores, because

         13  they know they're lax about looking at ID, they will

         14  look the other way, maybe they won't do the

         15  background check they're required, they're supposed

         16  to do, are there particular gun stores that people

         17  end up going to?

         18                 MR. FONVILLE: Well, on the streets we

         19  have basically what they call codes of, you know,

         20  certain things that we do and say to each other. We

         21  don't give up as people that are on the streets what

         22  we follow. And any community, whether wherever you

         23  at, whether Brooklyn, New York, Queens, Manhattan,

         24  North Carolina, State, every individual still

         25  follows those basic codes of not telling on the
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          2  other guy or, you know, what we do is get in there

          3  and basically find people who are either willing to

          4  deal with the guys or maybe a friend or someone who

          5  actually has been or come out of those type of

          6  neighborhoods and now are in gun stores that have

          7  gun licenses and will go and by 15, ten guns and

          8  sell them to his friends. It's so easy to get down

          9  there, buy them for cheaper price up here then bring

         10  them down here and sell them for $900, a thousand

         11  dollars, and they pay for them three, four-hundred

         12  dollars up in North Carolina. They come to New York

         13  and easily you can get a gun, handgun easy, 900,

         14  500, 600 dollars easy with no problem.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Coney Island

         16  is the neighborhood that you live in and familiar

         17  with?

         18                 MR. FONVILLE: Yes, sir.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: If a 17 year

         20  old -- I was going to say kid, a 17-year-old person

         21  in Coney Island wants to get a hold of a

         22  semi-automatic handgun, do you think that he'd be

         23  able to do that? Would he have any difficulty in

         24  doing that?

         25                 MR. FONVILLE: Again, like I said, the
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          2  code of the streets, I mean being there you have to

          3  understand, going through the streets, it's so much

          4  knowledge there. You can inquire anything that you

          5  want, anything from the streets. It's about who you

          6  know and who this person knows and that person knows

          7  and who he can get in contact with. But, yes, any 14

          8  year old, 15 year old, can go down the line from one

          9  of his either drug dealers and like I said, you

         10  can't stop them from talking to them or stand away

         11  from them because those are their either brothers,

         12  cousins, aunts, uncles, that are doing the drug

         13  selling or gun shooting. So, it's very easy to

         14  access a gun in our community, these illegal guns

         15  that flow through, because they come in through,

         16  into New York from North Carolina and Virginia and

         17  these areas and come into New York, and it's so easy

         18  for them to just get into the community and another

         19  guy will just find out who has got the gun, and once

         20  the wire goes around in the community, everyone,

         21  drug dealers, gangsters, knows they have the guns

         22  and they will get their hands on them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: One last

         24  question. I'm curious about, I don't know if you

         25  were here earlier today when the Police Department
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          2  was talking about the Amnesty Program --

          3                 MR. FONVILLE: Right. Yes, I was

          4  there.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: -- Going to a

          6  precinct.

          7                 Do you think that's an effective

          8  program, in other words? And is there a down side to

          9  it? Might somebody actually get rid of evidence by

         10  bringing it into a precinct?

         11                 MR. FONVILLE: I'm totally against

         12  that. Okay, when people were giving in guns that

         13  were coming into -- guys who have illegal guns and

         14  not want to bring in guns, they may bring in guns

         15  that may be legal that they may tire of having, or

         16  someone needs money, they turn in their gun, you

         17  know, for a hundred dollars or a hundred-fifty

         18  dollars, they come in and turn in the gun. But

         19  they're not going to get criminals or gangsters and

         20  thugs off the streets in coming in and giving in

         21  guns. I'm giving in illegal guns, handguns, they're

         22  not going to do that.

         23                 Then if they do that, again, like I

         24  said, to bring in a handgun and not question

         25  somebody on where it come from, I can understand if
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          2  they found it in the street and they brought it in,

          3  but to actually come from your home and somewhere

          4  else and bring in illegal handguns and not question

          5  where it's been, what type of activities it's been

          6  in, when it's been fired, I'm totally against that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I take

          8  it a Police Department point is, if they did

          9  extensively question people who walked in, then

         10  nobody would bring in guns, and that makes sense to

         11  me.

         12                 My question is, though, is there a

         13  down side in that you're actually maybe helping

         14  somebody who wants to get rid of a weapon that could

         15  be incriminating or could lead to police tracking

         16  down somebody who had commit a crime, so you could

         17  actually get rid of that evidence by bringing into a

         18  precinct and having it destroyed; is that --

         19                 MR. FONVILLE: Actually, that's

         20  exactly what can happen. If a gun is used in a

         21  slaying or a murder with someone's family and it's

         22  not been traced, most of the guns that are used,

         23  people get them away from the crime scene. They are

         24  either tooken (sic) away from the crime scene and

         25  used somewhere else, or when you know it's a hot
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          2  gun, it won't be on the streets like that. It will

          3  be passed around that it's a hot gun.

          4                 And they either try to destroy it

          5  theirself, or they sell if off to someone and bring

          6  them aware of the gun is hot, and most people who

          7  know -- because once the gun is hot, they don't want

          8  it anymore, no one wants it. They want to get rid of

          9  it, and it be passed down that the gun is hot. So,

         10  what most people can do is those who would take the

         11  gun and bring it into the police stations and get a

         12  hundred fifty dollars for the gun and having it

         13  destroyed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

         15  you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 And I guess I want to thank the whole

         17  panel for your very useful, very, very useful and

         18  helpful testimony. Thank you.

         19                 MR. PELOSI: Thank you, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         21  Gentile.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.

         23                 I'm just curious, Ms. Kuhls and Mr.

         24  Pelosi, about the New York State Ballistics

         25  Analysis. How does that differ from the federal, or
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          2  is it similar, or why don't you tell us about that?

          3                 MS. KUHLS: Yes. Technology is similar

          4  but the actual database of guns is different. The

          5  federal system is called, it goes by IBIS, and this

          6  Niven (phonetic) equipment, and that is a crime gun

          7  database. So, that's when a crime gun is found. They

          8  trace the bullet and the shell casing, they're fired

          9  from that. And as they do that, they've done that

         10  for many years now, and they have a database of

         11  crime guns, so that's what that database is.

         12                 New York State's database and

         13  Maryland, which is the only other state with it, we

         14  also have what we called CoBIS, Combined Ballistic

         15  Imaging System, and that is a new gun database. So,

         16  right now the law is that when a handgun is sold in

         17  New York, a shellcasing needs to be imaged and put

         18  in a database that's maintained by the State police.

         19  So, it's a new gun database.

         20                 The theory is that if you start doing

         21  this, you end up with a database of all guns, so

         22  that if you find any ballistic evidence in a scene,

         23  you can trace that to this database and potentially

         24  get a lead.

         25                 Right now just with the federal
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          2  system, it's crime database. So, if you don't

          3  actually have the crime gun, and that gun hasn't

          4  been used before in a crime, you don't get lead.

          5                 If it was used before in a crime, but

          6  they only got a shellcasing from another crime, you

          7  can say this gun was used in this crime, and this

          8  gun was used in this crime, but you still don't have

          9  the lead to where the gun came from, and that's what

         10  this CoBIS system does is, it provides a database

         11  that you trace it to the manufacturer and wherever

         12  it's first sold.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And you're

         14  saying that right now the New York City Police

         15  Department does not run checks through this CoBIS

         16  system?

         17                 MS. KUHLS: They don't regularly do it

         18  yet. They did a test of some, and it's just our

         19  understanding that they're in the process of working

         20  out a way to regularly query that database, and to

         21  my knowledge, to date they don't have it set up

         22  where they're regularly querying it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And not

         24  required to obviously.

         25                 MS. KUHLS: Yes, they are supposed to
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          2  be doing it. According to the State law, the guns

          3  are supposed to be put through it. But because of

          4  these query problems, it appears that nobody is

          5  actually, you know, saying why aren't you doing

          6  this?

          7                 It's kind of something that when New

          8  York State passed a group of laws in the Year 2000,

          9  Governor Pataki was behind and signed, and these

         10  databases were set up, there's also a crime gun

         11  clearinghouse database that was set up in the State

         12  that any guns used in crimes were supposed to be

         13  entered in that with all the data.

         14                 The whole point of all this is even

         15  if you, if that gun hasn't been used in that

         16  specific crime, eventually you can find connections

         17  and leads and this can particularly help with the

         18  trafficking problem, if you start to look at all

         19  this. And, so, yeah, again I don't know all the

         20  reasons we're not privy to everything, but it's just

         21  our understanding that it's just not being done yet.

         22                 Do you want to add anything?

         23                 MR. PELOSI: And New York City is not

         24  the exception. I mean, around the State, law

         25  enforcement, for whatever reasons, there aren't
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          2  mechanisms in place for them to take their crime

          3  scene evidence and transmit it to Albany, they're

          4  not regularly querying the system, so when someone

          5  comes up here before you and says, well, this system

          6  has been in place, the CoBIS system, for four years

          7  and there haven't been any hits, and money is being

          8  spent, well, they're not telling you the whole

          9  story. The time to crime issue that Jackie

         10  mentioned, the fact that if we're not regularly

         11  querying a system, what in effect we have is a

         12  warehouse of data, and that's not going to help any

         13  of us. It's not going to help law enforcement solve

         14  crimes.

         15                 This technology is designed to be a

         16  tool for law enforcement. In order for law

         17  enforcement to get leads, it has to be used in a

         18  proper way, and that's what we've been working on.

         19  That's what we've been calling on.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Has there

         21  been any leadership, either from the Criminal

         22  Justice Coordinator in the City or the State

         23  Criminal Justice Coordinator, to make this happen?

         24                 MS. KUHLS: The State Criminal Justice

         25  Coordinator is working on this, and has been for a
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          2  couple of years. We just haven't seen the fruits of

          3  that labor yet.

          4                 It's important to point out that what

          5  was just noted about whether criminals would turn in

          6  a gun to the Amnesty Program, it's interesting, the

          7  fact that some of the more hard core folks might end

          8  up trying to get rid of their gun to somebody else

          9  or whatever, that gun might be ultimately one that

         10  is turned in in an Amnesty Program, and that's a

         11  series of crimes they could be linked to if they

         12  were tracing it. And certainly that's why we're

         13  saying add it to CoBIS, as well as the federal

         14  database.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Pelosi, a

         16  question, what about mail order guns, guns that come

         17  through mail order, is that a major source in New

         18  York City?

         19                 MR. PELOSI: In New York City?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Yes.

         21                 MR. PELOSI: Councilman, I'm not sure,

         22  you know, what type of role mail order plays.

         23                 I do know that you can get, for

         24  example, on the web you can go to selected gun deals

         25  who have websites, and if you want to purchase
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          2  ammunition, for example, you can just self-declare

          3  that you're 21 years of age and then have an

          4  ammunition shipped to you. I actually did that to

          5  see if it worked. You could be a prohibited person.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: No checks.

          7                 MR. PELOSI: No checks. That's for

          8  ammunition now.

          9                 I can't speak to what type of role

         10  mail order plays. You're just as aware as I am most

         11  of the guns that are trafficked in this country are

         12  through straw purchasing, and the second leading

         13  area are gun shows. I'm not sure where the mail

         14  order plays. It's something we could look into.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Let me just

         16  read you this bit here about it happened ten years

         17  ago, the Ari Halberstam shooting here at the

         18  Brooklyn Bridge. And I just want to see if it would

         19  be any different today.

         20                 It says here in the "Halberstam

         21  murder, the gunman used a Glock 17 semi-automatic

         22  weapon purchased by a gun trafficker in a Miami gun

         23  shop, and a Cobra 9 semi-automatic weapon that was

         24  mail ordered and assembled.

         25                 A Street sweeper 12 gauge shotgun
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          2  purchased in an Atlantic gunshop was also found in

          3  the killer's apartment."

          4                 That was ten years ago, would that be

          5  any different today?

          6                 MR. PELOSI: I believe that the Street

          7  sweeper was banned by the 1994 federal law, the

          8  shooting I think occurred in 1993.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: 1993, right.

         10                 MR. PELOSI: The Cobra also I think

         11  was another banned assault weapon as part of the

         12  1994 law.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Which, you're

         14  talking about the federal assault, which is now

         15  expired?

         16                 MR. PELOSI: That has expired. That no

         17  longer exists, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So they can

         19  be back on the --

         20                 MR. PELOSI: Yes, they can be

         21  available if manufacturers -- now, New York State

         22  has its own assault weapon ban, and the definitions

         23  are the same as the recently expired federal law,

         24  but those two guns definitely would have been

         25  banned.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Right.

          3                 MR. PELOSI: Does that answer your

          4  question?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Basically.

          6  But you're saying that they're now available

          7  elsewhere that can be brought into New York City?

          8                 MR. PELOSI: Right.

          9                 MS. KUHLS: Not legally, but they can

         10  be brought in.

         11                 MR. PELOSI: But I mean, to your point

         12  about parts, you can still purchase parts and

         13  assemble, and that was another issue that we have

         14  been fighting over the last years with respect to

         15  the federal assault weapons ban, is banning parts in

         16  kits, so that you can't purchase something like that

         17  in an assembly or an assault weapon. I mean, that's

         18  another piece that needs to be focused on that's,

         19  you know, still out there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Is that part

         21  of the state ban?

         22                 MR. PELOSI: No. The state ban is

         23  exactly the same as the expired federal ban, so it

         24  does not address the parts and kits issue at all.

         25  There is legislation in the State assembly right now
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          2  that was introduced about a month ago, that would

          3  strongly, would really enhance the current state ban

          4  and deal with the parts and kits issue and also

          5  streamline the definition of what an assault weapon

          6  actually is, among other things.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I think, Mr.

          8  Chairman, we might take a look at that legislation

          9  in the Assembly. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Gentile.

         12                 If I haven't done this yet, let me

         13  thank Council Member Yassky for his continuing a

         14  great tradition of James Davis and of his leadership

         15  in all of these gun safety issues, we may have had

         16  more Public Safety Committee hearings on this topic

         17  than any other possibly save terrorism, and that

         18  because of Council Member Yassky's dedication, his

         19  harassment -- I mean, his efforts and perseverance,

         20  and so we owe you a debt in that regard.

         21                 I thank the four of you for coming

         22  in, and we will absolutely be amending some of these

         23  bills and using some of the information that all of

         24  you have given us. And as I have introduced my

         25  counsel Ted Baecher, and we look forward to working
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          2  with you all on this.

          3                 There are no more witnesses, so this

          4  hearing is adjourned. And we thank you for

          5  attending.

          6                 MR. PELOSI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sorry, one

          8  moment. Council Member Yassky.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I just want to

         10  thank you for the kind words here. I want to note I

         11  had extensive training and nagging, and I'm trying

         12  to put that into good use on this Committee but for

         13  good purposes. So, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:45 p.m.)
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